PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL

Kermit Williams, District 7
President

Randy Carter, District 4
President Pro Tem

Patrice Waterman, District 1
Megan Shramski, District 2

Mary Pietila, District 3

Gloria Miller, District 5

Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6

1t is this Council’s mission “To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life
Jor its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play.”

47450 Woodward Pontiac, M1 48342  Phone: (248) 758-3200 Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A.
Website: htip:/pontiaccitvelerk.com/city-council-meetings Interim City Clerk
FORMAL MEETING

253" Session of the 10" Council
September 14, 2021 at 6:00 P.M.
Bowens Center 52 Bagley Pontiac, M1 48341
Call to order
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers

Approval of the Agenda

Approval of the Minutes
1. September 7,2021

Subcommittee Report
2. Public Safety- August 2021

Recognition Elected Officials
Agenda Address
Agenda Items
Resolutions
Department of Public Works (DPW)
3. Resolution to approve the agreement between the City and Asphalt Specialist, Inc. for $2,096,286.00 for the
2021 Local Street Improvement Project

4. Resolution to approve the Support Emergency Operations Plan in cooperation with the Oakland County
Emergency Management and Oakland County Emergency Management Program

Finance
5. Resolution to approve hazard pay for DPW essential workers using American Rescue Plan (ARP) funds



Mayoral Monthly Reports
6. Personnel Monthly Staff Report

7. Monthly Check Register (Per the Administration, the check registers are posted on the city’s website
http://pontiac.mi.us/departments/finance/financial reports.php#revize document center rz3702

8. City Credit Card Statement (Per the Administration, the credit card statement was giveh directly to
Council Members by the Finance Director.)

Public Comment
Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments
Adjournment
Upcoming Special Presentations
September 7, 2021
1. Reducing the Digital Divide .

2. Office of the City Clerk Medical Marihuana Application Process Update
3. Legal Report of the Status of the Medical Marihuana Review Process



#1
MINUTES



September 7, 2021 Study

Official Proceedings
Pontiac City Council
252" Session of the Tenth Council

Call to order

A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the Bowens Senior
Center, 52 Bagley Pontiac, MI 48342 on Tuesday, September 7, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President
Kermit Williams.

Roll Call
Members Present — Carter, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams

Mayor Waterman was present.
A quorum was announced.

Authorization to Excuse Councilperson Gloria Miller. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and
second by Councilperson Waterman.

Councilwoman Gloria Miller arrived at 6:01 p.m. during roll call to excuse her.

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda
21-274 Motion to defer item # 2 (special presentation on reducing the Digital Divide) for
two weeks, Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller
No: None
Motion Carried

21-275 Motion to refer item #3 (resolution to approve a contract between the City and
Filmtools to complete the transition from analog to fiber-based broadcasting services in the amount
of $149,283.00) item #4 (resolution to approve a contract between the City and Comcast Cable to
complete the transition from analog to fiber-based broadcasting services in the amount of
$16,572,87) and item #5 (resolution to approve a contract between the City and HED to consult on
the renovations of the Council Chambers/Studio not to exceed $38,000) to the Cable Subcommittee
meeting on September 14, 20201 at 5:00 p.m. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by
Councilperson Miller.

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila
No: None
Motion Carried

21-276 Motion to approve the agenda as amended. Move by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and
second by Councilperson Pietila.

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Shramski
No: None
Motion Carried



September 7, 2021 Study

Approval of the Minutes
21-277 Motion to approve meeting minutes for August 31, 2021. Moved by Councilperson
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski and Taylor-Burks
No: None
Motion Carried

Public Comment
Six (6) individuals addressed the body during public comment

Suspend the Rules

21-278 Motion to suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by
Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

Ayes: Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, and Waterman
No: None
Motion Carried

Resolution
Department of Public Works — (DPW)
21-279 Resolution to approve the City entering into an agreement with Amistee Air Duct

Cleaning and Insulation to perform air duct cleaning services at all city-owned buildings not to
exceed $79,060.00. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks.

WHEREAS, The Department of Public Works has reviewed quotes and have determined that Amistee Air
Duct Cleaning & Insulation is the best firm to provide the Air Duct Cleaning services requested by the
city according pricing and safety and timeline.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor to enter into
an agreement with Amistee Air Duct Cleaning & Insulation for the amount of $79,060 to provide air duct
cleaning services for all city owned buildings according to the quote dated July 26, 2021.

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams
No: None

Resolution Passed
Council President left the meeting and Pro Tem Randy Carter assumed the chair

Communication from the City Attorney
Memorandum regarding Open Meetings act Obligations regarding Public Comment

Communication from the City Clerk
Citizen Request to locate a commemorative plague honoring Hubert Price, Jr. within Beaudette Park is
schedule for September 28,2021 from 11am to 1pm at Beaudette Park.

Adjournment
Council President Pro-Tem Randy Carter adjourned the meeting at 7:11 p.m.

Garland Doyle
Interim City Clerk



H#2

SUBCOMMITTEE
REPORT



Public Safety Subcommittee September 8, 2021

Meeting was called to order at 9:00; present was Charles Hughes from Star EMS, Waterford Regional
Fire Department Deputy Chief Carl Wallace, and Oakland County Deputy Pontiac Substation Captain
Andre Ewing, Council ProTem Randy Carter and Councilperson Mary Pietila, Councilwoman Sharamski
called stating she was dealing with trees down and electrical matters, she would not be in attendance.
Star reported there were some minor glitches during dream cruse with the construction ongoing at and
the positioning of Emergency Vehicles, which will be taken under consideration next year, however
there was no delay in attending to anyone needing service or transport.

Star has hired part-time basic EMT’s which are going through training. Car seat checks are now ongoing,
although this month there were no interested parties, although numerous agencies have started with
the checks, which may be contributing to this matter.

Deputy Wallace shared the time frames of new trucks is now 19 months, before Covid-19 trucks could
be delivered in 9 months, but unfortunately that is no longer the case.

Times were questioned, on Engine 9 which was involving a truck going out to assist on a non-emergency
call to Waterford, recorded by oversight in the wrong listing.

Neither SSgt was available as they both had training, but Captain Ewing was present, the first question
Was about the rubber on the road and how do we prevent this next year. He explained there wasn’t
proper placement of the deputies, nor was there enough deputies trying to cut costs. That will be
addressed next year as he has already talked to the Sheriff about more Deputies for Dream Cruise
weekend. This will be an added cost to the City. We then talked about the conversation which was had
during the Council meeting Tuesday night of the additional deputies. That matter went in front of the
County Commissioners this past week, it was approved so now the hiring begins to fill those positions,
this is a process of several months, so aithough Captain first said November, it may be December
because of the delays on both Council and the Administrative departments, Council because some did
not understand hiring another SSgt would not eliminate the overtime, which prolonged the Executive
administration in submitting the letter of approval to the Commissioners for their vote. One
commissioner was hesitant upon his approval, feeling additional deputies were not needed, until Major
suggested he ride with a Pontiac Deputy, Captain Ewing suggested Deputy Garrett and that ride is
upcoming.



9/10/2021 12:37
Road PatroIIDB

Oakland County Sheriff's Office
Pontiac Substation

2021

January February March

November | December Totals

T S T S S eSS

SR AL

tate Law Warrants | 99 1 =

Road Patrol Arrests: 293 293 355 308 306 257 315 298 T 2,425
Traffic Citations: 219 290 302 352 324 474 457 275 2,693
Detective Bureau Warrants: 11 115 143 132 120 121 130 140 1,012
Cases Assigned to Detectives: 404 325 403 396 432 403 430 459 3,252
Appearance Citations: 8 7 13 10 6 5 8 7 64
DNA Swabs 1 _0 0 0 0 0 0. 1 2

lolent nmesStatlstlcs

Felony Arrests 50 48 43 35 42 37 25 35 315
Misdemeanor Arrests in Custody: | 9 14 7 8 6 7 2 3 56
Appearance Citations: 8 13 5 2 1 3 1 2 35
Traffic Citations: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3
Controlled Buys: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Handguns Seized: 8 13 14 7 12 8 10 10 82
Long Guns Seized: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
-1Search Warrants Executed: 0 _ 0 0 0 O_V 0 0 1 ’ 1

eR eles v. == - e . = e ==
Homicides: 1 1 0 1 0 0 3 1 7
Discharged Firearm (Injuries): 6 0 3 3 8 8 2 6 36




WATERFORD REGIONAL
FIRE DEPARTMENT

2495 Crescent Lake Road « Waterford, MI 48329

Phone: 248.673.0405 » Fax: 248.674.4095
il www.waterfordmi.gov
Matthew ]. Covey, Fire Chief» Carl J. Wallace, Deputy Fire Chief « John R. Phebus, Fire Marshal

MONTHLY FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT
For the City of Pontiac
August 2021

Total Pontiac Fire Station calls - month: 480 Average Response Time 5:58 min. per call
Total calls for Pontiac Stations - YTD: 3.232
City Calls: Fires 16 EMS: 247 False Alarms:48 Other: 169
Pontiac YTD: Fires: 160 4.95% EMS: 1,837 56.84%
False Alarms: 261 8.08% Other: 923 30.13%

Month Count Response Times YTD
FS-6: Fires —04 5:59 027
EMS —65 5:03 327
FS-7: Fires —05 - 5:52 070
EMS -98 5:17 760
FS-8: Fires - 04 4:23 033
EMS —46. 5:24 369
FS-9: Fires —03 7:07 033
EMS -38 5:02 315

NOTE: Totals per Station could reflect response out of the city limits.

Fire Injuries to personnel: Zero Fire Injuries to civilian: Zero



Page 2
Notable Event:
e Fire Training for August was Leadership session final overview/ department budget

conducted by Chief Covey and ongoing general firefighting skills training.

e Two members and one past member of the fire department had the honor of being
presented Lifesaving Citations from the Sheriff at the annual awards ceremony Aug.
10, 2021. -Lt. James Todd, D.E./Paramedic Kenneth Estell, and past member C.J.
Waldron.

e Crews attended public events in both the City and Township throughouf the month.



#3
RESOLUTION



CITY OF PONTIAC

OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM

Executive Branch

TO: Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members

FROM: Abdul H. Siddiqui, City Engineer

DATE: September 7, 2021

RE: 2021 Local Street Improvement Project — Asphalt Specialists, Inc.

The City of Pontiac received and publicly opened bids for the referenced improvement
project on Thursday, August 26, 2021. The project consists of four parts:

e Part A: Local Streets Rehabilitation: Asphalt mill and fill of multiple local
streets throughout the City. Local Street Fund (Construction Account)

e Part B: West Columbia Rehabilitation: Asphalt overlay of W Columbia from
Baldwin to Starlite. Major Street Fund (Construction Account)

e Part C: Woodward Avenue Pavement Repair: Asphalt mill and fill of small
section of new pavement damaged by 2019 Roadkill Nights activities. This is
required by MDOT and will be reimbursed by the organizers of Roadkill Nights.

e Part D: Local Streets Pavement Repair: Asphalt repair of short segments of
multiple local streets. Local Street Fund (Maintenance Account)

A total of seven (7) bids were received for the project in the amounts as follows:

1. Asphalt Specialists, Inc. (ASI) $2,096,286.00
2. Florence Cement $2,319,581.00
3. Hutch Paving $2,369,729.30
4. Pro-Line Asphalt $2,414,284.31
5. Cadillac Asphalt, LLC. $2,446,862.87
6. Ajax $2,718,342.53
7. Pamar Enterprises $2,762,127.96

The Engineering Division has reviewed the proposals and references submitted by all
contractors and based on the attached is recommending the award to the low bidder, ASI.

Construction is anticipated to start in late September and continue until end of July 2022.

Funding for the project has been identified in the 21-22 Local Street Fund and 21-22 Major
Street Fund.

Based upon the above information, it is recommendation of the Department of Public
Works that the 2021 Local Street Improvement Project be awarded to ASI, in the amount
of $2.096.286.00.



WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has advertised and received responses to a
Request For Proposal for the 2021 Local Street Improvement Project
on August 26, 2021, and publically opened bids; and

WHEREAS, a bid tabulation was prepared and reviewed, and;

WHEREAS, the City identified the low bidder as Asphalt Specialists, Inc. (ASI),
and references of the low bidder checked and found acceptable, and;

NOW, THEREFORE,
BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to enter into a

contract with ASI for $2,096,286.00 for the 2021 Local Street
Improvement Project.



AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of ,20_ ,byand

between the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, party of the first part, hereafter

called the City, and Asphalt Specialists, Inc, , party of the second part,
hereinafter called the Contractor:

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter
mentioned:

1. The CONTRACTOR shall commence and complete the construction of:

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

in full conformance with the Contract Documents as enumerated in Article 6 of this Agreement,

2. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all of the material, supplies, tools, equipment, labor
and other services necessary for the construction and completion of the PROJECT described
herein, excepting those things which are specifically stipulated in the contract documents to be
furnished or done by the City.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall commence the work required by the CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS on or before the date stipulated in the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete
the same on or before July 31, 2022, Time shall be considered to be of the essence of this
Contract.

4. The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all of the WORK described in the CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS and comply with the terms therein for the contract price of:

$ 2,096,286.00

unless the contract price is duly changed by the contract documents.

5. The CITY shall pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times as set forth
in the General Conditions such amounts as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

6. The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" means and includes the following:
A. AGREEMENT
B. BID BOND
C. PERFORMANCE BOND

D. LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND

24 Agreement
Page | of4



N.

0.

MAINTENANCE BOND

CHANGE ORDER (Pursuant to General Conditions, Section 9)

ADDENDA:

No.____,dated , 20
No. ____, dated ,20
No._____,dated , 20
ADVERTISEMENT

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

BIDDER'S PROPOSAL (Incl. final Compliance Plan as accepted by OWNER)

GENERAL CONDITIONS (Incl. SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS
and SPECIAL CONDITIONS (if any))

SPECIFICATIONS (Incl. SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS and SPECIAL
PROVISIONS (if any))

PLANS (As listed in Schedule of Drawings)
NOTICE OF AWARD

NOTICE TO PROCEED

This agreement, together with other documents enumerated in this ARTICLE 6, which
said other documents are as fully a part of the Contract as if hereto attached or herein repeated,
forms the Contract between the parties hereto. In the event that any provision in any component
part of this Contract conflicts with any provision of any other component part, the provision of
the component part first enumerated in this ARTICLE 6 shall govern, except as otherwise
specifically stated.

7. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs,
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their

duly authorized officials, this Agreement in four (4) copies, each of which shall be deemed an
original, on the date first above written.

25 Agreement
Page 2 of 4



CONTRACT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PONTIAC
AND CONTRACTOR

2021 LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
CONTRACTOR: ASPHALT SPECIALISTS, INC.

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this agreement the day and year last written below.

WITNESSES:
1) By:
2) Its:
CITY OF PONTIAC

WITNESSES: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
1) By:

Allen Cooley Date
2) Its: Acting Director
WITNESSES: DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
1) By:

Darin Carrington Date
2) Its: Finance Director
WITNESSES: RISK MANAGEMENT DIVISION
1) By:

Date

2) Its: Risk Management Administrator
WITNESSES: OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
1) By:

Dierdre Waterman Date
2) Its: Mayor
Approved as to form:
By:

, City Attorney
26 Agreement

Page 3 of 4



SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

FOR

CITY OF PONTIAC

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
ENGINEERING DIVISION

2021 LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

BIDS DUE: ' PRE-BID MEETING:
Thursday, August 26, 2021 ‘

2:00 pm Meeting details will be issued
City Clerks Office in Addendum 1

Pontiac City Hall

47450 Woodward Avenue

Pontiac, M1 48342

ENGINEER

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS
46777 WOODWARD AVENUE
PONTIAC, MI 48342
(248) 332-7931

NFE Job No. M143



CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
2021 LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Advertisement

Instructions to Bidder

PO DN = bt et et et e e e e =
—S LN ABLN =D ORI R

Proposals to be Received
Location of the Work
Inspection of the Site

Conformity to Plans, Specifications and other Contract Documents

Basis on which Proposals are Solicited
Form of Proposals

Legal Status of Bidder

Agency

Bid Deposit

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
Statement of Bidder's Qualifications
Payments

Time of Completion

Right to Accept, to Reject and to Waive Defects
Award of Contract

Obligation to Execute Contract

Bonds

Indemnification and Insurance

City Income Tax

Pre-Bid Meeting

City of Pontiac - Purchasing Ordinance

Sample Insurance Certificate

Bid Forms :

1. Form of Proposal (7 Pages)

2. INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Agreement and Bonds

1. Bid Bond (Form) (2 Pages)

2, Agreement (Form) (4 Pages)

3. Bond for Faithful Performance (Form)

4, Labor and Materials Bond to the City of Pontiac, Michigan (Form)
5. Maintenance Bond (Form)

PAGE

o
O 00 60 00 60 00 ~J ~J =3 O\ O\ O\ L1 ;LD W L) W

13-16
17-18a

19,20 -
21-24
25,26
27,28
29,30



TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

General Conditions

Notices to Bidders, Specifications and Special Provisions, Log of Test Bores

PO P DD DD e et e e e b et e e et
I R R N T N T S S i el A I el S

Definitions

Plans and Specifications

Shop Drawings

Materials and Workmanship

Superintendence by Contractor

Engineering Supervision

City's Right to Complete; Suspension or Termination
Assignment of Contract

Extra Work and Modification

Disputed Claims for Extra Compensation
Extension of Time

Liquidated Damages

Payments to the Contractor

Warranty Maintenance

Michigan Non-Discrimination Statute

Labor Laws and Ordinances; Affirmative Action
Patents, Patent Rights and Trademarks

Work within Railroad, Private, State or County Right-of-Way

Protection and Safety
Cleaning Up

Progress Schedule
Contractor's Declaration
Contractor's Affidavit

il

PAGE

31-52
32-34
34,35
35
36
37,38
38,39
39
39,40
40,41
41
41,42
42
42-44
44,45
45
45
45
45
46-49
49
49,50
51
52

74 Pages



CITY OF PONTIAC
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS

Notice to Contractors
Sealed proposals will be received at the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue,
Pontiac, Michigan 48342, until 2:00 p.m., local time, Thursday, August 26, 2021, at which time the
bids will be publicly opened and read by the Clerk and the amounts of the bids noted for the:

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

The estimated quantities involved in this work consist principally of the following:

Description

HMA Surface, Rem 38,450 SYD
Cold Milling Conc Pavt 6,900 SYD
Subgrade Undercutting, 21AA 1,949 CYD
Aggregate Base, 8 inch 3,940 SYD
HMA, 5E3 7,720 TON
HMA, 4E3 3882 TON
Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch 3,275 SYD
Curb and Gutter, Det F4 1,279 LF
Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 2,619 SFT
Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch 292  SYD
Dr Structure, Adj, Case 1 146 EA
Hand Patching 1,400 TON

A mandatory pre-bid meeting will be scheduled through Addendum 1. Contract requirements and
technical specifications will be discussed in said meeting and it is mandatory that all prospective bidders
attend.

A certified check or a satisfactory surety bid bond for a sum not less than five (5) percent of the amount
of the proposal will be required with each proposal as a guarantee of good faith and same to be subject to
the conditions stipulated in the Instructions to Bidders.

The bidder will be required to comply with Michigan statutory prohibitions against discrimination in
employment and with employment opportunities for City of Pontiac residents,

No proposal once submitted may be withdrawn for at least 90 days after the actual opening of the bids.
The right to accept any proposal, to reject any or all proposals, and to waive defects in proposals, is
reserved by the City.

BY THE ORDER OF:
DIERDRE WATERMAN, MAYOR
CITY OF PONTIAC

DAN RINGO, DPW ADMINISTRATOR
CITY OF PONTIAC



Article

—

N IR BV R S

N DN DN = = e e e e e e e
Nom 2 0 kWD = o

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

INDEX

Proposal to be Received

Location of the Work

Inspection of the Site

Conformity to Plans, Specifications and Other Contract Documents
Basis on which Proposals are Solicited
Form of Proposal

Legal Status of Bidder

Agency

Bid Deposit

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
Statement of Bidder's Qualifications
Payments

Time of Completion

Right to Accept, to Reject, and to Waive Defects
Award of Contract |
Obligation to Execute Contract

Bonds

Insurance

City Taxes

Pre-Bid Meeting

Purchasing Ordinance

Non-Discrimination Provision



INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS

1. PROPOSALS TO BE RECEIVED
Sealed Bids or proposals for the:
2021 Local Street Improvement Project

will be received at the office of the City Clerk of the City of Pontiac, Michigan until 2:00
p.m., local time, Thursday, August 26, 2021 and immediately thereafter will be publicly
opened and read.

Each BID must be submitted in a sealed envelope, addressed to the City Clerk of the City
of Pontiac. Each sealed envelope containing a BID must be plainly marked on the outside as:

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

and the envelope should bear on the outside the name of the BIDDER, his address, his
license number (if applicable) and the name of the project for which the BID is submitted. If
forwarded by mail, the sealed envelope containing the BID must be enclosed in another
envelope addressed to the City Clerk, City of Pontiac, 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, MI
48342,

Bids will be received during regular business hours at the place and up to the time stated
in the Advertisement or up to the time extended by official notification. Bids may be
delivered in person or mailed, but their delivery is the bidder's entire responsibility. Any bid
received after the stated hour, even through the mail, will be returned unopened to the bidder.

No bidder may withdraw a bid within 90 days after the actual date of the opening
thereof. Should there be reason why the contract cannot be awarded within the specified
period, the time may be extended by mutual agreement between the City of Pontiac, herein
after also referred to as the City, and the BIDDER.

2. LOCATION OF THE WORK

Cherry Hill Drive, Fairmount Avenue, Starlight Lane, Woodward Avenue (BL-75),
Grandville Court, Bynan Lane / Gambrell Drive, Omar Street, Granada Drive, Russell /
Whittemore Street Intersection, S. Merrimac Street, St. Clair Street, and W. Columbia
Avenue in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan

3. INSPECTION OF THE SITE

It is expected that each bidder will make a personal examination of the entire site of the
proposed work and of its surroundings. It will be assumed that each bidder, before offering
their proposal, has obtained firsthand information concerning any probable interference and
the available facilities for transporting, handling, and storing construction equipment and
materials, and concerning other conditions which may affect his work.



4. CONFORMITY TO PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

Proposals must be made in full conformity to all the conditions as set forth in the Plans,
Specifications, and any Addendum for the work now on file in the office of the City
Engineer. The CONTRACT DOCUMENTS contain the provisions required for the
construction of the PROJECT. Information obtained from an officer, agent, or employee of
the City or any other person shall not affect the risks or obligations assumed by the
CONTRACTOR or relieve him from fulfilling any of the conditions of the contract.

Each BIDDER is responsible for inspecting the site and for reading and being thoroughly
familiar with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The failure or omission of any BIDDER to
do any of the foregoing shall in no way relieve any BIDDER from any obligation in respect
to his BID.

5. BASIS ON WHICH PROPOSALS ARFE SOLICITED
A. PROPOSAL SOLICITATION

Proposals may be solicited on the basis of unit prices, lump sum, or a combination of
both. The proposal will clearly state which basis is used.

The lump sum price, when applied to the project, or the unit prices, when applied to the
several demolition or salvage items, are to make up the total price for the entire work,
exclusive of those things which are to be done or furnished by the City, finished and
complete in every particular, according to the Plans and Specifications appertaining to such
work, which have been approved by the City Council and are now on file in the office of the
City Engineer.

Where Proposals are solicited on the basis of unit prices for certain construction units,
which are clearly set forth in the Form of Proposal, the Bidder shall state a unit price for each
and every item listed in the Proposal and such prices shall be extended and totaled. If during
the review of the Proposals, the City finds any errors in any extension or total, the City will
make the necessary corrections and award the Contract on the basis of such corrections, since
the unit prices shall govern. Any proposal which does not contain a unit price for each item
listed will be deemed incomplete and will not be considered in the award of the Contract.

The unit price for each of the several items in the Proposal shall be such that the whole of
the unit prices will represent a balanced bid. Any Proposal, in which the unit prices bid for
any of the several items are deemed by the City to be manifestly unbalanced, will be subject
to instant rejection.

B. STATEMENT OF QUANTITIES

The quantities indicated in the proposal show the Engineer's estimate of the construction
quantities involved in the job, and bids will be computed, tested, and compared by the
quantities given in the proposal. Although estimated carefully and with as much accuracy as
is practicable beforehand, these quantities are not to be taken as defining or limiting the
amount of work to be done under the Contract, but rather as information furnished to bidders
concerning the approximate extent of the several items and as a basis for comparing bids.



The City may increase or decrease the original contract price without renegotiation of the
Unit Prices.

C. MATERIALS TO BE FURNISHED BY THE CITY

The City will furnish to the Contractor, delivered at the site: NONE . The Contractor
will receive and be responsible for all these materials from the time of their delivery to him
until the time when they are received back by the City as part of the completed and accepted
structure.

D. EXTRA WORK

All extra work that may be required of the Contractor will be estimated and paid for
under provisions of the General Conditions, contained within this document, which govern
such work.

E. ALTERNATES

When the Proposal so provides, a price shall be stated for each listed alternate.
Unsolicited alternates are not to be submitted and, if so, will not be considered in the award
of the Contract and may cause the entire bid to be rejected.

Selection of whether to award the Contract on the basis of the Base Bid or utilizing one
or more of the Alternates will be made on the basis of value engineering and the City's need
to keep project costs within the project budget. The City reserves full right to make this
selection. After making such selection, the award shall be made on the basis of the lowest
responsive bid utilizing the Alternates selected, and evaluated in accordance with the
provisions of the Purchasing Ordinance of the City, in accordance with Article 15 of the
Instructions to Bidders.

F. LEGAL CONDITIONS

All applicable laws, ordinances, and the rules and regulations of all authorities having
jurisdiction over construction of the Project shall apply to the contract throughout.

G. PERMITS AND LICENSES

Permits and licenses of a temporary nature necessary for the prosecution of the WORK
shall be secured and paid for by the CONTRACTOR unless otherwise stated in the
SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS.

H. UTILITIES

Unless otherwise provided in these Specifications, the Contractor shall make his own
arrangements for electricity, gas, water and sewer services for use during the construction of
the work and shall pay for all connections, extensions, and setvices.



6. FORM OF PROPOSALS (Pages 13 through 18a)

All proposals must be made in the form attached hereto, and without removal from the bound
pamphlet. Additional copies of this proposal form for the bidder's files may be obtained on
request at the office of the City of Pontiac Water & Sewer Maintenance Division.

All prices stated in the Proposal must be plainly expressed in figures only, and in the
proper space or spaces provided. Prices shall be filled in, in ink or typewritten. Any
corrections shall be initialed by the Bidder.

All information called for on the Proposal must be furnished to enable a fair comparison
of the bids to be made. (Also see Instructions to Bidders, Section 10.)

The place of residence and phone number of each bidder, or the official address and
phone number in the case of a firm or company, with County and State, must be given with
the signature.

When bidder's drawings and/or specifications are required to be submitted, they shall be
in sufficient detail to fully and distinctly show and describe the equipment which the bidder
proposes to furnish, including the kind and quality of the material and workmanship that will
be used in the various parts. If any general drawings, specifications, catalogs ot any other
literature are submitted which contain information or data not pertaining to the particular
equipment proposed to be furnished, appropriate notations to that effect must be made.

Any stipulation or qualification contrary to the Contract requirements made by the bidder
in or accompanying his proposal as a condition for the acceptance of the Contract will not be
considered in the award of the Contract and may cause the rejection of the entire Proposal.

7. LEGAL STATUS OF BIDDER

The legal status of the bidder, that is, as a corporation, a partnership, or an individual,
must be stated in the proposal. A corporation bidder must name the state in which its articles
of incorporation are held, and must give the title of the official having authority under the by-
laws to sign contracts. A partnership bidder must give the full names and addresses of all
partners.

8. AGENCY

Anyone signing a proposal as agent of another or others must submit with the proposal
legal evidence of his or her authority to do so.

9. BID DEPOSIT

When the Advertisement states that security is required with the Proposal to ensure the
acceptance and execution of the Contract and Bonds, no bid will be considered complete
unless so guaranteed.

Each proposal must be accompanied by a certified check of guaranty or a bid bond in an
amount not less than five percent (5%) of the total price, drawn upon a solvent bank to the
order of the City Treasurer of the City of Pontiac, or if a bond, executed by a surety company



acceptable to the City, as a guarantee of good faith on the part of the bidder and subject to the
conditions stipulated in the proposal form.

A single certified check or guaranty (bidder's) bond may serve to cover two or more
alternative proposals when such alternative proposals are submitted by the same bidder.

10. INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

11. STATEMENT OF BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS

It is the intention of the City to award the Contract for this job to a Contractor whose
construction skill and financial resources are fully equal to the task of prosecuting the work
in a satisfactory manner and of bringing it to completion within the time limit specified.
With this end in view, the Form of Proposal calls for a statement of bidder's experience and
ability in this particular class of work, and for references concerning his/her business
standing and capacity. Contractor shall list the names, addresses and phone numbers of
references. The mere ability to offer bonds will not be taken as sufficient evidence of
responsibility on the part of the bidder. If Contract is awarded to a foreign company, a
certificate of authority to do business in this State must accompany the executed Contract.

The low BIDDER shall supply the names, addresses and phone numbers of major
material SUPPLIERS and SUBCONTRACTORS when requested to do so by the CITY.



12. PAYMENTS

Partial payments will be made to the Contractor during the satisfactory progress of the
work, calculated at the rate of ninety percent (90%) of the dollar amount of the work
completed, until fifty percent (50%) of the established contract amount is in place. After
fifty percent (50%) of the work is in place, additional retainage shall not be withheld unless
the Contractor's progress is unsatisfactory, all in accordance with Article 13 of the General
Conditions hereof and Act 524 of 1980.

13. TIME OF COMPLETION

This work to be done under the proposed Contract is to begin on or before the date stipulated
in the Notice to Proceed and must be completed on or before the completion dates provided in the
PROGRESS SCHEDULE. Time shall be considered to be of the essence of this Contract.

14. RIGHT TO ACCEPT, TO REJECT, AND TO WAIVE DEFECTS

The City reserves the right to accept any proposal, to reject any or all proposals, and to
waive any defect or irregularity in any proposal if it appears advantageous to the City to do
so. In particular, any alteration, erasure, or interlineation in the Form of Contract in the
Specifications which are attached hereto and made a part, specifically, of these Instructions,
ot of the Form of Proposal, shall render the accompanying proposal irregular and subject to
rejection by the City. In case any explanations, additions or alterations are to be offered, they
shall be indicated on separate sheets attached to the proposal and referred to therein.
Proposals which are clearly unbalanced will also be considered as irregular, and will be
subject to instant rejection by the City.

15. AWARD OF CONTRACT

The Contract will be awarded to the qualified Bidder submitting the lowest responsive
Bid complying with the conditions of the Invitation for Bids and Pontiac Purchasing
Ordinance. This Purchasing Ordinance provides a "benefit" for bids of Pontiac-based
persons and is referred to as the "equalization percentage credit" (See Article 21 of the
Instruction to Bidders). The Bidder's qualification and responsiveness shall be determined by
the City of Pontiac. The Bidder to whom the award is made will be notified at the earliest
possible date. The City reserves the right to reject all bids and not award the Contract, at its
sole discretion.

16. OBLIGATION TO EXECUTE CONTRACT

The Bidder whose proposal is accepted will be required to execute the Contract, in the
form attached hereto, and to furnish sureties as hereafter specified, within ten days (Sundays
and legal holidays excepted), after receiving notice of acceptance of bid and preparation
Contract forms is completed, and in case of the successful bidder's refusal or failure to do so,
shall be considered to have abandoned all their rights and interests in the award, and their
certified check or guaranty (bidder's) bond may be declared to be forfeited to the City as
liquidated damages and not a penalty, and the Contract may be awarded to another.



17. BONDS

The successful bidder will be required to execute surety bonds, with sureties acceptable
to the City. One such bond shall be a Performance Bond in the amount of 100 percent of the
Contract Price on the form attached as pages 25 and 26 of the specifications. Another such
bond shall be a Labor and Material Bond in the amount of 100 percent of the Contract Price
on the form attached as pages 27 and 28 of the specifications. The Contractor shall also
provide a Maintenance Bond in the amount of 100 percent of the Contract Price on the form
attached as pages 29 and 30 of the specifications. ‘

18. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the successful bidder agrees to defend, pay on
behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY OF PONTIAC, it's elected and appointed
officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of the CITY OF
PONTIAC, against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs connected
therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from
the CITY OF PONTIAC, it's elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others
working on behalf of the CITY OF PONTIAC, by reason of personal injury, including
bodily injury and death, and/or property damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises
out of or is in any way connected or associated with this contract.

The successful bidder shall purchase and maintain in a company or companies licensed to
do business in the State of Michigan, such insurance as will protect him from claims set forth
below which may arise out of or result from the contractor's operations under the contract,
whether such operations be by himself or any subcontractor or by anyone directly or
indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone whose acts are associated with the project
by any of them, may be liable.

a. Workers Compensation Insurance: The contractor shall procure and maintain
during the life of the contract, Workers Compensation Insurance, including Employer's
Liability Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan.

b. Commercial General Liability Insurance: The contractor shall procure and maintain
during the life of this contract, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an "Occurrence
Basis" with the limits of liability not less than $2,000,000, per occurrence and/or aggregate
combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall
include the following extensions: (1) Contractual Liability; (2) Products and Completed
Operations; (3) Independent Contractors Coverage; (4) Broad Form General Liability
Extensions or equivalent; and (5) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and Underground
(XCU) Exclusions. if applicable.

¢. Motor Vehicle Liability: The contractor shall procure and maintain during the life
“of the contract, Motor Vehicles Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault coverage,
with limits of not less than $1,000,000, per occurrence combined single limit Bodily Injury
and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non- owned vehicles
and all hired vehicles.



d. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability
Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be
""Additional Insured". "THE CITY OF PONTIAC, INCLUDING ALL ELECTED AND
APPOINTED OFFICIALS, ALL EMPLOYEES AND VOLUNTEERS, ALL BOARDS,
COMMISSIONS AND/OR AUTHORITIES AND THEIR BOARD MEMBERS, EMPLOYEES
AND VOLUNTEERS" AND NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS, the project consultant. (This
coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insured, and not contributing with any other
insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, whether said other
available coverage be primary, contributing or excess.)

e. Cancellation Notice: Workers Compensation Insurance, Commercial General
Liability Insurance, and Motor Vehicle Insurance, as described above, shall include an
endorsement stating the following: "IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THIRTY
(30) DAYS ADVANCE WRITTEN NOTICE OF CANCELLATION, NON-RENEWAL,
REDUCTION AND/OR MATERIAL CHANGE SHALL BE SENT TO: CITY OF
PONTIAC, RISK MANAGEMENT DIVISION, 47450 WOODWARD AVE., PONTIAC,
MICHIGAN, 48342". ‘

f. Owner's and Contractot's Protective Liability: The contractor shall procure and
maintain during the life of this contract, a separate Owner's and Contractor’s Protective
Liability insurance coverage of not less than $2,000,000, per occurrence and/or aggregate,
combined single limit, Personal Liability, Bodily Injury, and Property Damage. The City of
Pontiac shall be "Named Insured” on said coverage. Thirty (30) days Notice of Cancellation
shall apply to this policy.

The successful bidder shall not commence work until he has obtained the insurance
required under this section, nor shall the successful bidder permit any subcontractor to
commence work on his subcontract until the insurance required of the subcontractor has been
obtained.

Certificates of Insurance, along with copies of original policies where applicable,
acceptable to the City, shall be filed with the City of Pontiac, Risk Management Division, ten
(10) days prior to commencement of the contract. A sample certificate is included on page
12 for reference.

19. CITY INCOME TAX

a. Contractor agrees to contact City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and
Compliance Section, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan, 48342, telephone (248)
758-3236, to establish reporting and withholding obligations under the City of Pontiac
Income Tax Ordinance. Contractor will require the same of all subcontractors employing
labor under this contract.

b. Normally, the Contractor will be required to withhold City of Pontiac income tax if
either of the following applies:
(1) Performance under this contract (together with any other contracts in the City during
the calendar year) will last 13 weeks or more.

10



(2) Contractor employs one or more Pontiac residents for the performance of this
contract.

c. Contractor agrees to pay any personal property taxes required by the City Assessor.
20. PRE-BID MEETING

A mandatory pre-bid meeting will be scheduled by Addendum [ with meeting
instructions.

21. CITY OF PONTIAC PURCHASING ORDINANCE (Chapter 2, Article VI, Division
2) Municipal Code, City of Pontiac, Michigan, adopted March 21, 1996 and effective March
31, 1996.

Bidders are advised of the following provisions of the Purchasing Ordinance:
a. PUBLIC BIDS - EQUALIZATION PERCENTAGE CREDIT

An "equalization percentage credit" will be allowed for bids of Pontiac-based bidders.
This means that bids by Pontiac-based bidders will be compared as if they were two percent
(2%) less than their actual amount. The equalization percentage credit will be one percent
(1%) if the lowest bid is $100,000 or above. Not applicable to emergency purchases.
Successful Pontiac - based bidder awarded on this basis may not sublet to non-Pontiac-based
business.

b. CONTRACTOR OR VENDOR IN DEFAULT OR INDEBTED TO THE CITY

No bid shall be accepted from or contract awarded to any contractor or vendor who is in
arrears to the City upon debt or contract including payments of real property taxes or an
income tax obligation of any kind, or who is in default as to security or otherwise upon an
obligation to the City. ' '

c¢. VIOLATIONS - MISREPRESENTATION

Any material misrepresentation to the City of Pontiac by a bidder or prospective bidder,
contractor or vendor in any documentation or paperwork submitted in a bid or proposal or
otherwise in connection with an attempt to obtain a contract or engage in a business
transaction shall be a violation, and may be considered sufficient basis to disqualify the
contractor or vendor from eligibility for the award of a City contract.

22. NON-DISCRIMINATION PROVISION

Pursuant to the requirements of 1976, P.A. 453 (Michigan Civil Rights Act) and 1976,
P.A. 220 (Michigan Handicapped Rights Act), the bidder and any subcontractors agree not to
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure,
terms, conditions, or privileges of employment or a matter directly or indirectly related to
employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital
status, or due to a handicap that is unrelated to the person’s ability to perform the duties of a
particular job or position. The Bidder must include this provision in any subcontracts
associated with the project work.

11



CONTRACTOR:

FORM OF PROPOSAL

Date:

To the Honorable Mayor / City Council
City of Pontiac, Michigan

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Having carefully examined the site of the proposed work, and being fully informed in regard to the
conditions to be met in the prosecution and completion of the work, and having read and examined the
Instructions to Bidders, Agreement, Bonds, General Conditions, Plans and Specifications pertaining to
this work, and agreeing to be bound accordingly, the undersigned proposes to furnish all the materials,
labor, tools, power, transportation and construction equipment necessary for the satisfactory and complete
construction of the 2021 Local Street Improvement Project in full accordance with and conformity to
the specifications for this work now on file in the office of the City Engineer at and for the following
named prices, to wit:

Contractor acknowledges receipt of the following Addendum(s):

Addendum No.: Dated:
Addendum No.: Dated:

Addendum No.: Dated:

13a Form of Proposal
Page | of 7



Part A - Local Streets Rehabilitation

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT PRICE  AMOUNT
1 | Mobilization, Max. 10% 1 LSUM
2 | HMA Surface, Rem 28,973 | SYD
3 | Excavation, Earth 2,327 | CYD
4 | Curb and Gutter, Rem 1,555 FT
5 | Sidewalk, Rem 310 SYD
6 | Pavt, Rem 388 SYD
7 | Subgrade Undercutting, 21AA 1,492 | CYD
8 | Aggregate Base, 8 Inch 2,825 | 8YD
9 | HMA, 5E3 3,821 | TON
10 | Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4 1,129 FT
11 | Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det M 426 FT
12 | Sidewalk, Conc, 4 Inch 2,547 | SFT
13 | Sidewalk, Conc, 6 Inch 240 SFT
14 | Driveway, Nonreinf Cong, 6 Inch 267 SYD
15 | Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 8 Inch 67 SYD
16 | Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Add Depth 212 FT
17 | Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 106 EA
18 | Dr Structure, Temp Lowering 74 EA
19 | Dr Structure Cover, Type K . 28 EA
20 { Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Sanitary 38 EA
21 | Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Water 5 EA
22 | Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Storm 31 EA
23 | Hand Patching 1,150 | TON
24 | Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn 560 SFT
25 | Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper 560 | SFT
26 | Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Inlet Filter 72 EA
27 | Clearing 330 FT
28 | Restoration 1 LSUM
29 | Minor Traf Devices 1 LSUM
30 | Traffic Regulator Control 1 LSUM
Subtotal Part A:

13b

Form of Proposal
Page 2 of 7




Part B - West Columbia Rehabilitation

UNIT

ITEM QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT
31 | Mobilization, Max. 10%, Columbia 1 LSUM
32 | HMA Surface, Rem, Columbia 5,135 SY
33 [ Cold Milling Conc Pavt 6,900 SY
34 | Curb and Gutter, Rem, Columbia 150 LF
35 | Pavt, Rem, Columbia 25 SY
36 | Pavt Repr, Rem, Columbia 3,275 SY
37 | Subgrade Undercutting, 21AA, Columbia 250 CYD
38 | Aggregate Base, 8 inch, Columbia 500 SY
39 | Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Cong, 8 inch 3,275 SY
40 | Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 250 EA
41 | HMA, 5E3, Columbia 3,756 | TON
42 { HMA, 4E3, Columbia 648 TON
43 | Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4, Columbia 150 LF
44 | Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 Inch, Columbia 25 SYD
45 | Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Add Depth, Columbia 62 FT
46 | Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, Columbia 31 EA
47 | Dr Structure, Temp Lowering, Columbia 31 EA
48 | Dr Structure Cover, Type K, Columbia 13 EA
49 | Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Sanitary, Columbia 16 EA
50 | Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac, Storm, Columbia 15 EA
51 | Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 4 inch, White 42 FT
52 | Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 4 inch, Yellow 8,400 FT
53 | Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, Only 1 EA
54 | Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, Lt Turn Arrow Sym 1 EA
55 | Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 24 inch, Stop Bar 21 FT
56 [ Hand Patching, Columbia 250 TON
57 | Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Inlet Filter, Columbia 58 EA
58 | Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn, Columbia 256.5 | SFT
59 [ Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper, Columbia 256.5 | SFT
60 | Restoration, Columbia 1 LSUM
61 | Minor Traf Devices, Columbia 1 LSUM
62 | Traffic Regulator Control, Columbia 1 LSUM

13¢

Subtotal Part B:

Form of Proposal
Page 3 of 7




Part C - Woodward Avenue Pavement Repair

ITEM QUANTITY  UNITPRICE  AMOUNT
63 | Mobilization, Max. 10%, Woodward 1 LSUM
64 | HMA Surface, Rem, Woodward 397 SY
65 | Sidewalk, Rem, Woodward 8 SY
66 | HMA, 5E3, High Stress 35 TON
67 | Sidewalk, Conc, 4 Inch, Woodward 72 SF
68 | Lighted Arrow, Type B, Furn, Woodward 2 EA
69 | Lighted Arrow, Type B, Oper, Woodward 2 EA
70 | Channelizing Device, 42 inch, Furn, Woodward 75 EA
71 | Channelizing Device, 42 inch, Oper, Woodward 75 EA
72 | Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn, Woodward 252 SF
73 | Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper, Woodward 252 SF
74 | Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 4 inch, White, Woodward 50 FT
75 | Restoration, Woodward 1 LSUM
76 { Minor Traf Devices, Woodward 1 LSUM
77 | Traffic Regulator Control, Woodward 1 LSUM

Subtotal Part C:

Part D - Local Streets Pavement Repair

ITEM QUANTITY  UNITPRICE AMOUNT
78 | Mobilization, Max. 10%, Street Repair 1 LSUM
79 | HMA Surface, Rem, Street Repair 1240 SY
80 | Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, Street Repair 5 EA
81 | Dr Structure, Temp Lowering, Street Repair 7 EA
82 | Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac Sanitary, Street Repair 2 EA
83 | Dr Structure Cover, Pontiac Storm, Street Repair - 3 EA
84 | Water Shutoff, Adj, Case 1 2 EA
85 | Underdrain, Subgrade, 6 inch 370 FT
86 | HMA, 5E3, Street Repair 108 TON
87 | HMA, 4E3, Street Repair 234 TON
88 | Aggregate Base, 8 inch, Street Repair 195 SY
89 | Subgrade Undercutting, 21AA, Street Repair 67 CYD
90 | Restoration, Street Repair 1 LSUM
91 | Minor Traf Devices, Street Repair 1 LSUM
92 | Traffic Regulator Control, Street Repair 1 LSUM

13d

Subtotal Part D:

TOTAL:

Form of Proposal
Page 4 of 7




The Contractor acknowledges that he has not received nor relied upon any representations or warranties
of any nature whatsoever from the City of Pontiac, its officers, employees or agents and that if he is
awarded this contract, he shall enter into this Contract solely as the result of his own independent business
judgment.

The undersigned acknowledges that he has made his own independent investigation and has satisfied
himself as to the conditions of the work, including soil and subsurface conditions.

The undersigned agrees that, in case any additions or deductions in the amount of work contemplated
are made, the above named unit prices for the various classes of work shall be used to allow for such
additions or deductions.

The undersigned hereby agrees that if this Proposal shall be accepted by the said City, he will, within
ten days after receiving notice of such acceptance and delivery of Contract forms thereof at the address
given below (Sundays and legal holidays excepted), enter into contract, in the attached form, to construct
the said work according to said plans and specifications and to furnish therefor all necessary equipment,
tools and building appliances, materials, labor, power and transportation as aforesaid at and for the prices
named in the foregoing paragraph; to furnish to the said City and to the State of Michigan such sureties
for the faithful performance of such Contract and for the payment of all materials used therein and for all

labor expended thereon as shall be approved and accepted by the said City; and to furnish to the said City
of Pontiac a Maintenance Bond.

The undersigned attaches hereto a (certified check), (bidder's bond), in the sum of:

Dollars ($ )
as required in the Instructions to Bidders. And the undersigned hereby agrees that, in case he
shall fail to fulfill his obligations under the foregoing proposal and agreement, the said City may,
at its option, determine that the undersigned has abandoned his rights and interests in such
contract and that the certified check or bidder's bond accompanying this proposal has been
forfeited to the said City as liquidated damages and not as a penalty; but, otherwise

14 Form

of Proposal
Page 5 of 7



The undersigned states that he currently owns or intends to rent the following equipment that
will be used in work covered by this proposal:

List of Equipment Owned

List of Intended Rental Equipment

The undersigned states that he has done work similar in character to that covered by this proposal
at the following named times and places, to wit:

The undersigned refers the said City to the following named parties for information concerning
his experience, skill and business standing:

NAME, ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER:

Dated and signed at , Ml on
(City) (Date)

Name of Bidder:
Address of Bidder:

By:

Title:

Telephone#: Fax#:

Federal Tax [.D. Number ( )

15 Form of Proposal

Page 6 of 7



CERTIFICATIONS

IF A CORPORATION

I, , certify that I am the of
the corporation named as Contractor herein; that ,who
signed this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor, was then of

said corporation; that said Agreement was duly signed for and in behalf of said
corporation by authority of its governing body, and is within the scope of its corporate

powers.

Corporate Seal Signature

IF A PARTNERSHIP

I, . , certify that I

am a partner in the partnership named as Contractor herein, and that [ have authority to
sign for and on behalf of this partnership consisting of the following partners:
NAME AND ADDRESS:

Signature

IF A SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP
I, , certify that I am the

sole owner and proprietor.

Signature

16 Form of Proposal
Page 7 of 7



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

17 Page 1 of 3



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

18 Page 2 of 3



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

18a Page 3 of 3



BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned,

as Principal,

and as Surety, are

hereby held and firmly bound unto the City of Pontiac, Michigan, as OWNER in the
penal sum of?

Dollars ($ )

for the payment of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind

ourselves, successors and assigns. Signed, this day of ‘ , 20

The Condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principal has
submitted to the City of Pontiac, Michigan, a certain BID, attached hereto and hereby
made a part hereof to enter into a contract in writing, for the

NOW, THEREFORE,
(a) If said BID shall be rejected, or

(b) If said BID shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a
contract in the Form of Contract attached hereto (properly completed in
accordance with said BID) and shall furnish a BOND for his faithful performance
of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing
materials in connection therewith, and shall in all respects perform the agreement
created by the acceptance of said BID, then this obligation shall be void,
otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood
and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in
no event, exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein stated.

19



The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said
Surety and its BOND shall be in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the
time within which the OWNER may accept such BID; and said Surety does hereby waive
notice of any such extension.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and
seals, and such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto
affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set
forth above,

(L.S)
Principal

(L.S)
Surety
By:

IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury
Department's most current list (Circular 540 as amended) and be authorized to transact
business in the State of Michigan.

20



AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of , 20, by and

between the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, party of the first part, hereafter called

the City, and , Michigan, party of the second part,
hereinafter called the Contractor:

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter
mentioned:

1. The CONTRACTOR shall commence and complete the construction of:

in full conformance with the Contract Documents as enumerated in Article 6 of this Agreement.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all of the material, supplies, tools, equipment, labor
and other services necessary for the construction and completion of the PROJECT described
herein, excepting those things which are specifically stipulated in the contract documents to be
furnished or done by the City.

3. The CONTRACTOR shall commence the work required by the CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS on or before the date stipulated in the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete
the project based on the dates established in the PROGRESS CLAUSE special provision, uniess
the date for completion is extended otherwise by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. Time shall be
considered to be of the essence of this Contract.

4, The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all of the WORK described in the CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS and comply with the terms therein for the contract price of:

unless the contract price is duly changed by the contract documents.

5. The CITY shall pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times as set forth
in the General Conditions such amounts as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

6. The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" means and includes the following:
A. AGREEMENT
B. BID BOND
C. PERFORMANCE BOND

D. LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND

21

Agreement
Page | of 4



E. MAINTENANCE BOND

F. CHANGE ORDER (Pursuant to General Conditions, Section 9)

G. ADDENDA:
No. , dated , 20
No. , dated ,20
No. , dated , 20

H. ADVERTISEMENT
I. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
J.  BIDDER'S PROPOSAL (Incl. final Compliance Plan as accepted by OWNER)

K. GENERAL CONDITIONS (Incl. SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS and
SPECIAL CONDITIONS (if any))

L. SPECIFICATIONS (Incl. SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS and SPECTAL
PROVISIONS (if any))

M. PLANS (As listed in Schedule of Drawings)
N. NOTICE OF AWARD
0. NOTICE TO PROCEED

This agreement, together with other documents enumerated in this ARTICLE 6, which said other
documents are as fully a part of the Contract as if hereto attached or herein repeated, forms the Contract
between the parties hereto. In the event that any provision in any component part of this Contract conflicts
with any provision of any other component part, the provision of the component part first enumerated in
this ARTICLE 6 shall govern, except as otherwise specifically stated.

7. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by their duly

authorized officials, this Agreement in four (4) copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, on the
date first above written.

292 Agreement
Page 2 of 4



CONTRACT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PONTIAC

AND CONTRACTOR

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

CONTRACTOR:

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this agreement the day and year last written below.

WITNESSES:
1) By:
2) Its:
CITY OF PONTIAC
WITNESSES: DEPTARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
1) By:
Date

2) Its: DPW Administrator
WITNESSES: DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
1) By:

Darin Carrington Date
2) Its: Director
WITNESSES: OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
1) By:

Dierdre Waterman Date
2) Its: Mayor
Approved as to form:
By:

, City Attorney
23 Agreement

Page 3 of 4



CERTIFICATIONS

IF A CORPORATION

I, , certify that I am the of
the corporation named as Contractor herein; that ,who
signed this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor, was then of

said corporation; that said Agreement was duly signed for and in behalf of said
corporation by authority of its governing body, and is within the scope of its corporate

powers.*

Corporate Seal Signature

* Attach copy of corporate resolution verifying authorization of individuals named above.

IF A PARTNERSHIP

L . , certify that I

am a partner in the partnership named as Contractor herein, and that I have authority to
sign for and on behalf of this partnership consisting of the following partners:

NAME AND ADDRESS:

Signature

IF A SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP
I, , certify that [ am the

'sole owner and proprietor.

Signature

24 Agreement
Page 4 of 4



BOND FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That

as principal, and

, as surety, are held and

firmly bound unto the City of Pontiac, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation, in the sum of:

good and lawful money of the United States of America, to be paid to said City of
Pontiac, its legal representatives and assigns, for which payment well and truly to be
made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns,
and each and every one of them, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

Sealed with our Seals and dated this day of ~_AD.20 .

WHEREAS, the above named principal has entered into a certain written contract
with the City of Pontiac, dated this day of A.D.20 ,
wherein the said principal covenanted and agreed as follows, to-wit:

TO COMMENCE AND COMPLETE the:

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS such that if
the above named principal or their legal representatives or successors, shall in all things
well and truly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in the manner
and form and at the time agreed upon to be kept and performed as provided by said
contract, and plans, drawings, and specifications, referred to in said contract, and as may
be required by the changes, alterations, and modifications thereof, as provided in said
contract, then the above obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and
effect.

25 Bond for Faithful Performance
Page | of 2



This bond is given upon the express condition that any changes, alterations, or
modifications that may be hereafter ordered or made in the construction and complete
installation of the work herein referred to, or the placing of an inspector or superintendent

thereon by the City of Pontiac shall not operate to discharge or release the surety or
sureties thereon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be
executed by their respective authorized officers this day of A.D.
20

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the Presence of:

(L.S.)

(L.S)

(L.S)

26 Bond for Faithful Performance
Page 2 of 2



LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND TO THE
CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That

as principal, and

, as surety, are

held and firm bound unto the City of Pontiac, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation, in the

sum of:

good and lawful money of the United States of America, pursuant to Michigan State
Public Act 213 of 1963, to be paid to the City of Pontiac, Michigan, for the use and
benefit of all subcontractors, and persons, firms and corporations who shall furnish
materials, supplies and perform labor entering into the work of:

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

for which payment well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns, and each and every one of them jointly and
severally, firmly by these presents.

Sealed with our Seals and dated this day of A.D.20 .

WHEREAS, the above named principal has entered into a certain written contract
with the City of Pontiac, dated this day of A.D.20 ,
wherein the said principal covenanted and agreed as follows, to wit:

TO COMMENCE AND COMPLETE the:

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

7 Labor & Material Bond

Page 1 of 2



NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if
the above named principal, legal representatives, or successors shall pay or cause to be
paid to all subcontractors, persons, firms, and corporation, as the same may become due
and payable, all indebtedness which may arise from said principal to a subcontractor or
party performing labor or furnishing materials and supplies, or any subcontractor to any
person, firm or corporation on account of any labor performed or materials and supplies
furnished in connection with the contract, construction and work herein referred to, then
this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

This bond is given upon the express condition that any changes, alterations, or
modifications that may be hereafter ordered or made in the construction and complete
installation of the work herein referred to, or the placing of an inspector or superintendent
thereon by the City of Pontiac shall not operate to discharge or release the surety or
sureties thereon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be

executed by their respective authorized officers this day of AD.

20

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the Presence of:

(L.S)

(L.S)

(L.S)

28 Labor & Material Bond
Page 2 of 2



MAINTENANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That

as principal, and

, as surety, are held

and firm bound unto the City of Pontiac, Michigan, a Municipal Corporation, in the sum of:

good and lawful money of the United States of America, pursuant to Michigan State Public
Act 213 of 1963, to be paid to the City of Pontiac, Michigan, for the use and benefit of all
subcontractors, and persons, firms and corporations who shall furnish materials, supplies and
perform labor entering into the work of:

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

for which payment well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns, and each and every one of them jointly and severally,
firmly by these presents.

Sealed with our Seals and dated this day of A.D. 20 .

WHEREAS, the above named principal has entered into a certain written contract with
the City of Pontiac, dated this day of A.D. 20 , wherein the said
principal covenanted and agreed as follows, to wit:

TO COMMENCE AND COMPLETE construction of?,

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

29 Maintenance Bond

Page 1 of 2



NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that by
and under said contract, the above named principal has agreed with the City of Pontiac that
for a period of ONE year(s) from the date of payment of Final Estimate, to keep in good
order and repair all the work, done under said contract, excepting only such part or parts of
said work as may have been disturbed without the consent or approval of the principal after
the final acceptance of the work, and that whenever directed so to do by the City Engineer of
the City of Pontiac by notice served.in writing, either personally or by mail, on the principal
at:

or

legal representative, or successors, or on the surety at:

WILL PROCEED at once to make such

repairs as directed by said City Engineer; and in case of failure so to do within one week
from the date of service of such notice, or within reasonable time not less than one week, as
shall be fixed in said notice, then the City of Pontiac shall have the right to purchase such
materials and employ such labor and equipment as may be necessary for the purpose, and to
undertake, do and make such repairs, and charge the expense thereof to, and receive same
from said principal or surety. If any repair is necessary to be made at once to protect life
and property, then and in that case, the City may take immediate steps to repair or barricade
such defects without notice to the contractor. In such accounting the City shall not be held
to obtain the lowest figures for the doing of the work or any part thereof, but all sums
actually paid therefore shall be charged to the principal or surety. In this connection the
judgment of the City Engineer is final and conclusive. If the said principal for a period of
ONE year(s) from the date of payment of Final Estimate, shall keep said work so
constructed under said contract in good order and repair, excepting only such part or parts of
said work which may have been disturbed without the consent or approval of said principal
after the final acceptance of the same, and shall, whenever notice is given as hereinbefore
specified, at once proceed to make repair as in said notice directed, or shall reimburse said
City of Pontiac for any expense incurred by making such repairs, should the principal or
their surety do so as hereinbefore specified, then the above obligation shall be void,
otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be
executed by their respective authorized officers this day of AD.
20

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the Presence of:

(L.S.)

(L.S.)

(L.S.)

30 Maintenance Bond
Page 2 of 2



GENERAL CONDITIONS

The following general conditions are agreed to as defining certain relationships which shall be taken to exist between
the parties hereto and as setting forth certain conditions under which the Contract is to be fulfilled.

INDEX
Article
L. Definitions
2. Plans and Specifications
3. Shop Drawings
4. Materials and Workmanship
5. Superintendence by Contractor
6. Engineering Supervision
7. City's Right to Complete, Suspension or Termination
8. Assignment of Contract
9. Extra Work and Modification
10,  Disputed Claims for Extra Compensation
11, Extension of Time
12, Liquidated Damages
13 Payment to the Contractor
14,  Warranty Maintenance
15.  Michigan Non-Discrimination Statute
16. Labor Laws and Ordinances
17.  Patents and Patent Rights
18.  Work within Railroad, Private, State or County Rights-of-way
19.  Protection and Safety
20.  Cleaning Up
21,  Progress Schedule

31



GENERAL CONDITIONS

Article 1 - DEFINITIONS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Wherever used in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, the following terms shall have the
meanings indicated which shall be applicable to both the singular and plural thereof:

ADDENDA - Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the execution of the Agreement
which modify or interpret the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS by additions, deletions,
clarifications or corrections.

BID - The offer or proposal of the BIDDER submitted on the prescribed form setting forth
the prices for the WORK to be performed. (See 1.8)

BIDDER - Any person, firm or cotporation submitting a BID for the WORK.

BONDS - Bid, Performance, Labor and Material, and Maintenance Bonds and other
instruments of security, furnished by the CONTRACTOR and his surety in accordance with
the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

CHANGE ORDER - A written order to the CONTRACTOR authorizing an addition,
deletion or revision in the WORK within the general scope of the CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS, or authorizing an adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or CONTRACT
TIME.

CITY - The City of Pontiac, Michigan, or its properly authorized representatives; and
whenever the term "City Council", "Mayor", "City Clerk", "Director of Finance", "City
Engineer", or "Engineer", is used, it shall be understood to mean the Council, Mayor, Clerk,
Director of Finance, or Engineer of the said City.

PARTICIPATION PLAN - The participation document required to accompany each
proposal, as finally accepted by the City, including any revisions up to the time of
acceptance, :

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS - The Contract, including ADVERTISEMENT,
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS, FORM OF PROPOSAL, BID BOND, AGREEMENT,
LABOR & MATERIAL BOND, PERFORMANCE BOND, MAINTENANCE BOND,
GENERAL CONDITIONS, SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS, NOTICE OF
AWARD, NOTICE TO PROCEED, CHANGE ORDER, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS,
ADDENDA, and the PARTICIPATION PLAN, and any other documents specifically set
forth in the Agreement.

CONTRACT PRICE - The total monies payable to the CONTRACTOR under the terms and
conditions of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

32



1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

CONTRACT TIME - The number of calendar days stated in the CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS for the completion of the WORK on each street; or the number of calendar
days from the date established in the NOTICE TO PROCEED to the DATE stated in the
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS for the completion of all of the WORK of the TOTAL
CONTRACT; or both.

CONTRACTOR - The person, firm or corporation with whom the CITY has executed the
Agreement, or its legal representatives.

ENGINEER - The City Engineer and/or the person, firm or corporation named as such in the
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

FIELD ORDER - A written order effecting a change in the WORK not involving an
adjustment in the CONTRACT PRICE or an extension of the CONTRACT TIME, issued by
the ENGINEER to the CONTRACTOR during construction.

NOTICE OF AWARD - The written notice of the acceptance of the BID from the CITY to
the successful BIDDER.

NOTICE TO PROCEED - Written communication issued by the CITY to the
CONTRACTOR authorizing him to proceed with the WORK and establishing the date of
commencement of the WORK.

OPEN TO TRAFFIC - That date as certified by the ENGINEER, when the WORK
(PROJECT) or any section thereof is in a suitable condition for safe travel. The term
"SUITABLE CONDITION FOR SAFE TRAVEL" shall be construed to mean that all work,
INCLUDING the Leveling Course of Bituminous Material and all Concrete Work are
complete. The PROJECT, or any portion thereof may be designated as "Accepted for
Traffic" prior to completion of the whole project, and shall be opened to traffic as may be
directed by the ENGINEER. In general, the term "OPEN TO TRAFFIC" shall be in
accordance with Section 107.21 of the MDOT 2012 Standard Specifications for
Construction.

PLANS - The part of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS which show the characteristics and
scope of the WORK to be performed and which have been prepared or approved by the
ENGINEER.

PROJECT - The undertaking to be performed as provided in the CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS.

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE - The authorized representative of the CITY
who is assigned to the PROJECT site or any part thereof.

SHOP DRAWINGS - All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, brochures, schedules and other

33



1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

data which are prepared by the CONTRACTOR, a SUBCONTRACTOR, manufacturer,
SUPPLIER or distributor, which illustrate how specific portions of the WORK shall be
fabricated or installed.

SPECIFICATIONS - A part of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS consisting of written
descriptions of a technical nature of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards
and workmanship (may include SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS AND/OR SPECIAL
PROVISIONS).

SUBCONTRACTOR - An individual, firm or corporation having a direct contract with the
CONTRACTOR or with any other SUBCONTRACTOR for the performance of a part of the
WORK at the site.

SUPPLIER - Any person or organization who supplies materials or equipment for the
WORK, including that fabricated to a special design, but who does not perform labor at the

- site.

WORK - All labor necessary to produce the construction required by the CONTRACT

DOCUMENTS, and all materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in the
PROJECT.

WORK ORDER - A written order to the CONTRACTOR causing a change in WORK
involving the authorization to undertake additional work at existing contract unit prices or at
new contract unit prices for new items of work.

WRITTEN NOTICE - Any notice to any party of the Agreement relative to any part of this
Agreement in writing and considered delivered and the service thereof completed, when
posted by certified or registered mail to the said party at his last given address, or delivered in
person to said party or his authorized representative on the WORK.

Article 2 - PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

The location of the structures and improvements which are to be built or made under this Contract,
and the character, form and dimensions of their various parts, are shown in the accompanying drawings,
specifications and details in the Contract Document entitled:

2021 Local Street Improvement Project

These drawings constitute the Plans according to which the work of this Contract is to be done.
Additional drawings may be prepared by the City Engineer and supplied to the Contractor during the
progress of the work, as he may deem to be necessary or expedient. All such additional drawings, made
in elaboration or explanation of the original drawings, are to be considered as part and parcel of the
Plans and shall be respected and followed as such by the Contractor.

34



The Plans are supplemented and explained by a set of technical specifications, which are appended
hereto, and which describe and define the quality of materials and the character of workmanship which
are to enter into the work of this Contract. These are the Specifications which are referred to in Article
1, and elsewhere in this Contract. Additional specifications in further elaboration or explanation of the
work to be done may be prepared by the City Engineer and supplied to the Contractor during the
progress of the work, as he may deem to be necessary or expedient. Such additional specifications are to
be considered as part and parcel of the specifications under this Contract, and shall be respected and
followed as such by the Contractor.

Both Plans and Specifications are considered as essential parts of this Contract, and are intended to
be cooperative. They shall be construed as supplementary each to the other, and any work called for in
the Plans and not particularly mentioned in the Specifications, or described in the Specifications and not
specially shown on the Plans, is to be regarded as included under this Contract the same as if fully set
forth in the Specifications and exhibited on the Plans. Wherever figures or definite dimensions are
given on the Plans or in the Specifications, these shall have precedence over dimensions taken by
scaling.

In case any inconsistency, omission, or conflict shall be discovered in the Specifications or Plans, or
if in any place the meaning of either or both shall be obscure or uncertain or in dispute, the City
Engineer shall decide as to the true intent and his decision shall be final and binding. Any such
inconsistencies, omissions, or conflict noted should be called to the attention of the Engineer, and a
decision on the same obtained in advance.

Article 3 - SHOP DRAWINGS

3.1 The CONTRACTOR shall providle SHOP DRAWINGS as may be necessary for the
prosecution of the WORK as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The
ENGINEER shall promptly review all SHOP DRAWINGS. The ENGINEER's approval of
any SHOP DRAWINGS shall not release the CONTRACTOR from responsibility for
deviations from the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The approval of any SHOP DRAWING
which substantially deviates from the requirement of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS shall
be evidenced by a CHANGE ORDER.

3.2 When submitted for the ENGINEER'S review, SHOP DRAWINGS shall bear the
CONTRACTOR'S certification that he has reviewed, checked and approved the SHOP
DRAWINGS and that they are in conformance with the requirements of the CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS.

3.3 Portions of the WORK requiring a SHOP DRAWING or sample submission shall not begin
until the SHOP DRAWING or submission has been approved by the ENGINEER. A copy of
each approved SHOP DRAWING and each approved sample shall be kept in good order by
the CONTRACTOR at the site and shall be available to the ENGINEER.

35



Article 4 - MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP

It is mutually understood that all materials and workmanship furnished under this Contract shall be of
the highest quality, to the end that a good and substantial and workmanlike job may be produced. The
Contractor shall bring only first class materials to the work, and he shall furnish suitable tools and
equipment and shall employ competent labor to perform the work to be done. Any materials or labor or
tools or equipment that shall not, in the judgment of the Engineer, be suitable or competent to produce the
desired result, may be ordered from the work by the Engineer, and such materials or labor or tools or
equipment shall be promptly substituted therefor by the Contractor as will meet with the approval of the
Engineer. Wherever a brand or name is given, it is for the purpose of defining or establishing a type or
quality of material only.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Defective Materials

Any materials or fabricated articles furnished by the Contractor to be used in this work which
shall not, in the judgment of the Engineer, be equal to the requirements of the Plans and
Specifications, may be rejected by the Engineer; and such rejected materials or articles shall
not be used, but shall be immediately removed by the Contractor from the site of the work.

Stored Materials

Materials and equipment distributed, stored or placed upon or near the site of the work shall be
at all times so disposed as not to interfere with work being prosecuted directly by the City or
by other Contractors in the City's employ or with access thereto, and not to hinder any more
than may be necessary the ordinary pedestrian and vehicular traffic of the streets.

Property Rights in Surplus Materials

All excess materials excavated during the progress of the work and not required for
backfilling, all timber except tree stumps cut from the right-of-way, and all other materials
which have been encountered and handled during construction operations, and which
constitute a disposable surplus at the end of the construction period, shall be the property of
the Contractor, unless otherwise directed by the City or its Engineer. Such materials shall be
hauled and neatly piled, or hauled and dumped at the places designated by the Engineer, at no
extra compensation.

Water Supply

Water for construction purposes may be taken from the City mains subject to the rules of the
Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner’s office.

36



Article 5 - SUPERINTENDENCE BY CONTRACTOR

5.1

52

5.3

54

5.5

Except where the Contractor is an individual and gives his personal superintendence to the
work, the Contractor shall provide a competent superintendent, satisfactory to the City and
the Engineer, on the work at all times during working hours with full authority to act for the
Contractor. Any orders by the Engineer given to and received by said superintendent shall
be deemed to have been given to and received by the Contractor. The Contractor shall also
provide an adequate staff for the proper coordination and expediting of his work. The
Contractor shall maintain a complete set of plans and specifications at the site.

The Contractor may set up and establish an office on or near the site. On certain large
projects, the Engineer may direct the Contractor to set up an office.

The Contractor shall lay out his own work and he shall be responsible for all work executed
by him under the Contract. He shall verify all figures and elevations before proceeding
with the work and will be held responsible for any error resulting from his failure to do so.

Disorderly Employees

Disorderly, intemperate, or incompetent persons must not be employed, retained, or
allowed upon the work site. Any foreman or workman who refuses or neglects to comply
with the directions of the Engineer in the matter of personal conduct shall, at the request of
the Engineer, be promptly discharged and shall not thereafter be re-employed without the
consent of the Engineer.

Relation to Other Contractors

The Contractor shall so conduct his operations as not to interfere with or injure the work of
other Contractors or workmen employed by the City on adjoining or related work, and he
shall promptly make good any injury or damage which may be done to such work by him or
his employees or agents. Should a contract for adjoining work be awarded to another
Contractor, and should the work on any one of these contracts interfere with that of the other,
the Engineer shall decide which Contractor shall cease work for the time being and which
shall continue or whether the work on both contracts shall continue at the same time and in
what manner. In case the territory of one contract should be the necessary means of access to
another contract, the Engineer shall have power to grant reasonable privileges with respect to
the transportation or movement of men, animals, appliances or materials as he may adjudge
to be necessary or expedient and in the best interests of the City. Any decision which the
Engineer may make as to the method and time of conducting work or the use of territory
shall not be made the basis of any claim for damages, but an extension of time may be
claimed, if justified by the circumstances, the same as in the case of other delays caused by
the acts of the City. Any difference of opinion or conflict of interest which may arise
between this Contractor and other Contractors or workmen of the City in regard to adjoining
work shall be determined and adjusted by the Engineer.

37



5.6 Time and Sequence of Work

In general, it is the intention and understanding that the Contractor shall have control over the
sequence or order of execution of the several parts of the work to be done under this
Contract, and over the methods of accomplishing the required results, except as some
particular sequence or method may be distinctly demanded by the Plans and Specifications or
by the express provisions of this Contract; the Engineer may, however, make such
reasonable requirements as may, in his judgement, be necessary for the proper and effective
protection of work partially or wholly completed, and to these requirements, the Contractor
shall strictly conform.

5.7  Sunday and Night Work

No Sunday work shall be done except in case of emergency or to protect from damage or
injury any work that has already been done, and then only with the written consent of the
Engineer, and only to such an extent as he may judge to be necessary.

Ordinarily, no night work shall be carried on which will require the presence of the Engineer
or an inspector, except with the written permission of the Engineer. Night work is
permissible in an emergency to the extent required to meet the emergency, but the Contractor
shall notify the Engineer, as far as possible in advance, of his intentions to carry on such
emergency work and of the time and place of doing it.

Article 6 - ENGINEERING SUPERVISION

The work covered by this Contract will be executed under the engineering supervision of the City
Engineer, who shall have authority to inspect all materials and workmanship entering into the work, to
furnish all instructions and information regarding the Plans and Specifications that may be necessary, to
supply supplementary or additional plans or specifications as he may deem expedient, and to point out to
the Contractor any disregard of any of the provisions of the Contract; but the right of final acceptance or
condemnation of the work will not be waived at any time during its progress.

The Engineer will set suitable stakes and marks showing the locations and elevations of various parts
of the work and the Contractor shall provide such labor and assistance as the said Engineer may require
in setting the same. The Contractor shall take due and proper precautions for the preservation of these
stakes and marks, and shall see to it that the work at all times proceeds in accordance therewith. The
Engineer may provide for the inspection of any or all materials or workmanship used or intended to be
used under this Contract, by assistants under his direction or otherwise, as he may deem to be advisable
or expedient; but no inspection shall relieve the Contractor of his fundamental obligation to fully respect
all the requirements of his Contract. Such inspection may cover any or all parts of the work, and may
extend to and include the preparation or manufacture of any materials or fabricated articles intended to
be incorporated in the work. The Contractor shall furnish, upon request therefor by the Engineer, such
samples for examination or testing as the Engineer may prescribe. The Contractor shall furnish such

labor and assistance as may be necessary for the proper handling of materials in all inspections and tests
that may be required,

38



The Engineer and his duly authorized agents and employees may, at any time and for any purpose,
enter upon the work and upon the premises occupied by the Contractor, and the Contractor shall provide
proper and safe facilities by which the Engineer may have access to such parts of the work as may be
required.

Article 7 - CITY'S RIGHT TO COMPLETE; SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION

It is agreed that the City has the right, when it shall become satisfied that the work provided for in
this Contract will not be completed within the time limit, to furnish additional labor and material if
necessary and render such other assistance as it may deem advisable, for the completion of said
Contract, at the expense of the Contractor, and may retain the same out of the Contract price, or recover
the same by legal proceedings.

It is agreed that the Mayor has the right to determine finally all questions as to proper performance
of this Contract, or any part or portion thereof, and in case of improper, dilatory or imperfect
performance thereof, to suspend the work at any time and to order the partial or entire reconstruction of
the same, and if at any time the said Contractor shall abandon the work of this Contract or become
habitually negligent of his obligations under it, or shall fail to prosecute the work with reasonable
diligence, so that the time of final completion of the work shall be unnecessarily and intolerably delayed,
or if he shall violate any of the provisions of the Contract, then and in such case the Mayor may declare
this Contract forfeited and may, at address given in the proposal, notify him to discontinue all work
under this Contract, or any part thereof, and thereupon he shall discontinue such work, or such part
thereof, and shall cease to have any right to the possession of the ground; and the City shall thereupon
have the right to complete the work or any part thereof by Contract or otherwise, as it may elect, and for
that purpose to take possession and make use of such materials, tools, building appliances, and
equipment as may be found upon the work, and to charge the expense thereof to the Contractor. Power
is hereby given the Mayor to determine all such questions under this Contract, according to the true
intent and meaning thereof.

All expenses charged under this provision shall be deducted and paid by the City of Pontiac out of
any monies then due to the Contractor under this Contract, or any part thereof, and in such accounting
the City of Pontiac shall not be held to obtain the lowest figures for the work of completing the contract,
or any part thereof, or for insuring its proper completion, but all sums actually paid therefor shall be
charged to the Contractor. In case the expenses to be charged are less than the sum which would have
been payable under this contract if the same had been completed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall
be entitled to receive the difference; and in case such expenses shall exceed the said sums, the
Contractor shall pay the amount of the excess to the City of Pontiac.

39



Article 8 - ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

It is agreed that the Contractor shall not assign or transfer this Contract, or subcontract any part of
the work embraced in it, except with the written consent of the Mayor to do so.

It is further agreed that all parts of the work which may be performed by a subcontractor shall
conform to the Plans and Specifications and be subject to all provisions of this Contract exactly as if
performed by the Contractor and his immediate employees and workmen. No such letting of the work
shall, in any way, diminish or weaken the responsibility of the Contractor for all parts of the work or
lessen his obligation under this Contract.

It is likewise agreed that the Contractor shall not assign, either legally or equitably, any of the
monies payable to him under this Contract, or his claim thereto, except with the written consent of the
Mayor.

Article 9 - EXTRA WORK AND MODIFICATION

It is agreed that the said Contractor shall do such incidental or extra work in connection with this
Contract as the Mayor may especially order in writing. If such extra work or any part thereof be of such
character that it may be definitely covered by construction items for which unit prices are named in the
proposal of this Contract, then and in that case the City will pay, and the Contractor will accept as full
compensation for such extra work, or such part thereof, the amount computed by applying the unit prices
to the quantities of extra work falling under the several items. Also, such extra work may be paid for at
prices mutually agreed upon at the time by the City and the Contractor. But if such extra work, or any
part thereof, be of a kind which may not be definitely covered by the regular pay items of this contract,
and if no price therefor has been mutually agreed upon in advance, or if the work is of such a nature that
it cannot be estimated with fair exactness in advance, then the City will pay, and the Contractor will
accept as full compensation for such, an amount equal to the actual and necessary net cost in money to
the Contractor for labor and materials actually used therein or expended thereon, plus fifteen percent
(15%) of such net cost for superintendence, power, the use of tools, and plant, liability insurance, and all
overhead and incidental expenses.

During the progress of any extra work which is to be paid for on the basis of net cost plus fifteen
percent (15%), the Contractor will furnish to the City Engineer, at the end of each day, suitable time slips
showing the name of and the number of hours worked by each workman employed thereon, the nature of
work performed by him, and his rate of pay, together with suitable and adequate memoranda of the
materials used therein, showing the character and amount of each such material, the source from which
it was purchased, and the price paid or to be paid therefor.

The City may, at its discretion, furnish to the Contractor any materials or supplies or transportation
required for extra work, and the Contractor shall not be entitled to any allowance or percentage on
account of materials or supplies or transportation so furnished.

It is agreed that all extra work that may be ordered and performed under the provisions of this article
shall be done by the Contractor in an effective and workmanlike manner, and shall be subject to the
same restrictions and liabilities as those which apply to the general work of this Contract; and the
Contractor will be responsible for the maintenance and protection of such extra work until the time of
the final acceptance of the entire job by the City.

40



And it is further agreed that no claim against the City on account of extra work shall be valid unless
such extra work has been previously ordered in writing by the Mayor, and unless such claim has been
presented for payment as soon as practicable after the completion of such extra work and before the
making up of the final estimate.

When it becomes necessary in the prosecution of any work or improvement under contract to make
minor alterations or modifications of such contract or the plans and specifications thereof, such
alterations, changes or modifications shall be made only on the written order of the Mayor.

No such order shall be made until the price to be paid for the work or material or both and the
credits, if any, to be allowed by the City under the altered and modified Contract shall have been
agreed upon in writing and signed by the Contractor and by the Mayor.

Article 10 - DISPUTED CLAIMS FOR EXTRA COMPENSATION

If any inconsistency, omission, or conflict is discovered in either the plans or the specifications, or
if in any place the meaning of either the plans or the specifications, or both, is obscure, or uncertain, or
in dispute, the Engineer will decide as to the true intent.

In case the Contractor deems extra compensation is due for work or materials not clearly covered in
the contract, or not ordered by the Engineer as extra work, or due to changed or altered conditions, the
Contractor shall notify the Engineer in writing of the Contractor's intention to make claim for such extra
compensation before beginning work on which the Contractor intends to base a claim and shall afford
the Engineer every facility for keeping actual cost of the work. The Contractor and the Engineer shall
compare records and bring them into agreement at the end of each day. Failure on the part of the
Contractor to give such notification or to afford the Engineer proper facilities for keeping strict account
of actual cost will constitute a waiver of the claim for such extra compensation except that consideration
will be given to claims to the extent that they are substantiated by City records. The determination of
extra compensation made by the City, where the Contractor has failed to give proper notice of his claim
for extra compensation as provided herein or has failed to afford the Engineer proper facilities for
keeping strict account of actual costs, shall be final and binding on the Contractor. The filing of such
notice by the Contractor and the monitoring of cost by the Engineer for said notice of claim, shall not in
any way be construed to establish the validity of the claim. When the extra work in question has been
completed, the Contractor shall file the claim for extra compensation with the Engineer.

Such claims shall be filed with the Engineer in a timely manner but no later than 10 days after the
contract is completed. A written decision will be given to the Contractor in a timely manner, regarding
the approval, partial approval, or disapproval of the Contractor's claim for extra compensation. The City
will determine procedures for reviewing the Contractor's claim.

Article 11 - EXTENSION OF TIME

It is agreed that if the Contractor shall be unavoidably delayed in beginning or fulfilling this Contract
by reason of excessive storms or floods, or by acts of Providence, or by general strikes, or by court
injunction, or by stopping of the work by the City because of any emergency or public necessity, or by
reason of extra work ordered by the City Engineer, or by any act, neglect, delay, or default on the part of

41



the City, the Contractor shall have no valid claim for damages on account of any such cause or
delay, but he shall be, in such case, entitled to such extensions or advancement of the time period
specified in the Agreement as the City Engineer shall adjudge to be just and reasonable;
provided, however, that formal claim for such extension shall be made in writing by the
Contractor within a week after the date upon which such alleged cause of delay shall have
occurred. The closing down of the work during the winter season on account of cold weather
shall not be taken as entitling the Contractor to any extension of time within the meaning of this
Article.

In case the Contractor shall be delayed in the fulfillment of his obligations under this
Contract, from any cause whatsoever, and in case the City shall acquiesce in the Contractor's
prosecution and completion of the work, or any part of it, after the date at which it should have
been finished, such acquiescence shall not operate as a waiver of any of the City's rights under
this Contract, nor shall it invalidate or in any way weaken the Contractor's bonds.

Article 12 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

It is expressly covenanted and agreed by and between the parties hereto that time is and shall
be considered as of the essence of the Contract, and in the event that said Contractor shall fail in
the due performance of the entire work to be performed under this Contract, by and at the time
herein mentioned and referred to in the Agreement, or within some other certain date subsequent
to this to which the time limit for completion of the work may have been advanced under
provisions of Article 11, the said Contractor shall pay unto the City as and for liquidated
damages, and not as a penalty, the sum of Thirteen Hundred Fifty Dollars($ 1,350.00) for each
and every calendar day that the said Contractor shall be in default.

Said sum of Thirteen Hundred Fifty Dollars($ 1,350.00) per day, in view of the difficulty
of estimating such damages with exactness, is agreed upon as the damages which will be
suffered by the City by reason of such default. It is also understood and agreed by the parties to
this Contract that the liquidated damages hereinbefore mentioned are in lieu of the actual
damages arising from such breach of this Contract; which said sum the City shall have the right
to deduct from any monies in its possession, otherwise due, or to become due to said Contractor,
ot to sue for and recover compensation for damages for non-performance of this Contract at the
time stipulated herein and provided for. (See also any Special Provisions for Liquidated
Damages.)

Said liquidated damages are in addition to any actual damages which the City may recover under
the provisions of the contract.

Article 13 - PAYMENTS TO THE CONTRACTOR
13.1  Contractor's Obligation Prior to Payment
It is agreed that before the Contractor shall demand partial or final estimates or

payments, the City may require him to furnish the City satisfactory evidence that all
persons that have supplied labor or materials for the work embraced under this

42



13.2

13.3

Contract have been fully paid for the same; and that in case such evidence be not
furnished as aforesaid, such sums as the City may deem necessary to meet the lawful
claims of the persons aforesaid be retained by the City from any monies that may be
due or become due to him under this Contract until such liabilities shall be fully
discharged and evidence thereof be furnished to the City. The Contractor agrees to
make prompt settlement for all repair expenses made by the City as a result of the
Contractor's work. Consent of the Contractor's surety will be required prior to final
payment.

City's Obligation to Pay

It is agreed that, in consideration of the faithful and entire performance by the
Contractor of his obligations under this Contract, the City shall pay to him, at the
times and in the manner stipulated, the total sum as determined by calculations from
the unit prices in the proposal, but diminished by such amount as the City may
lawfully retain as liquidated damages under the provisions of Article 12 herein; and
the Contractor shall accept the payment of such sum as full compensation for his
work under this Contract.

Progress Estimates and Payments

Progress payments shall comply with Act No. 524 Public Acts of 1980. At about the
first of each month, during which satisfactory progress has been made toward the
final completion of the work, the Engineer will make up an estimate of the amount
and value of the work which has been done under this Contract since the date of the
last preceding estimate, and will report such estimate in writing to the City Director
of Finance. Such estimates shall not be required to be made by strict measurements,
or with exactness, but may be made either wholly or in part by appraisement or
estimation or by a consideration of accounts for labor and materials, and it shall be
sufficient if it is approximate only. Any error or inaccuracy which may occur in any
progress estimate may be allowed for or corrected in any subsequent estimate.

Following the rendering of such estimate by the Engineer, and as soon as practicable
thereafter, the City will pay to the Contractor on account a sum equal to ninety
percent (90%) of the Contract price of such work. The remaining ten percent (10%)
will be retained until work is fifty percent (50%) in place. After the work is fifty
percent (50%) in place, additional retainage shall not be withheld unless the City
determines that the Contractor is not making satisfactory progress, or for other
specific cause relating to the Contractor's performance under the Contract. If the City
so determines, the City may retain not more than ten percent (10%) of the dollar value
of work more than fifty percent (50%) in place.

The Director of Finance may require the Contractor, before the payment of any

estimate, to file an affidavit showing the unpaid bills for materials or supplies of any
kind furnished for this work.

43



13.4

13.5

Any time after 94% of the work is in place, the Contractor may request release of all
of the retainage. The City shall be required to release the retainage plus interest to
the Contractor in such case only if the Contractor provides to the City an irrevocable
letter of credit in the amount of the retainage plus interest, issued by a bank
authorized to do business in this State, and containing terms mutually acceptable to
the Contractor and the City.

The progress estimates and payments thus provided for will include all extra work
which may be done under the provisions of this Contract on the same basis as other
work is included, all such extra work being regarded herein as essentially a part of
this Contract, and not merely supplementary to it.

Disputes under this provision may be submitted to the decision of an agent, at the
option of the City, pursuant to Section 4 of Act 524 of 1980. (MCLA 125.1564).

Measurement

Due and proper measurements will be taken by the Engineer during the progress of
the work, and his estimates, based upon such measurements, shall be final and
conclusive evidence of the amount of work performed under this Contract.

Final Estimate and Payment

As soon as practicable after the satisfactory completion of all the work included
under this Contract, the Engineer will make final inspection of all the work and will
make up a final estimate of the amount due to the Contractor under the terms of this
Contract. At this time the Contractor shall file with the Director of Finance an
affidavit stating that all bills have been paid in full for all materials, supplies and
labor of every kind that have been furnished for this work, or stating the balance due
for such materials, supplies and labor (See sample on Page 52). The Contractor
shall file with the City Engineer the Contractor's Declaration found on Page 51,
stating that all claims for extra payments have been satisfactorily settled and there
will be no further claims. A final certificate relative to compliance of Affirmative
Action Plan also will be required as a condition of payment. Consent of the
Contractor's surety shall also be filed. The Engineer will then certify this estimate to
the City Director of Finance and the Contractor will be paid the amount of said
estimate, less the amounts previously paid; excepting that the City may, at its
option, reserve such amount as it may deem necessary to meet the undischarged
obligations of the Contractor for materials or labor expended upon this work until
such obligation shall have been paid.

Article 14 - WARRANTY MAINTENANCE

If, at any time during a one-year period from the date of payment of the final estimate, the

need of any repair or replacement becomes apparent, the City will at once notify the Contractor
in writing, either personally or by mail at the address given in the proposal; and if within one
week after such notification the Contractor has not made the necessary repairs, the City may
proceed to do the required work and to charge the cost thereof against the Contractor, excepting

44



that in the case of a repair necessary to be made at once to protect life and property, then and in
that case the City may take immediate steps to repair or barricade such defects without notice to
the Contractor.

Following the performance of any such repair work by the City, and as soon as practicable
thereafter, an itemized statement of the cost of such work will be sent to the Contractor by the
City. In such accounting the City shall not be held to obtain the lowest figures for the doing of
the work or any part thereof, but all sums actually paid therefor shall be charged to the
Contractor.

Article 15 - MICHIGAN NON-DISCRIMINATION STATUTE

It is agreed that the Contractor and his subcontractors will not discriminate against an
employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or
privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of
race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or marital status; or because of a
handicap that is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform the duties of a particular job or
position. Breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of the Contract.

Article 16 - LABOR LAWS AND ORDINANCES

The Contractor shall obey and abide by all laws of the State of Michigan relating to the
employment of labor on public work, and all the charter provisions and ordinances of the City of
Pontiac regulating or in respect to public improvements.

Article 17 - PATENTS, PATENT RIGHTS, AND TRADEMARKS

The Contractor shall indemnify, protect, defend and save the City of Pontiac, including all
elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or
authorities and their board members, employees, volunteers and others working on behalf of the
City, harmless against all claims or actions brought against the City by reason of any actual or
alleged infringement upon patent, trademark or service mark right in any article, material,
process, machine or appliance used by him in this work.

Article 18 - WORK WITHIN RAILROAD, PRIVATE, STATE OR COUNTY RIGHTS-OF-
WAY

All construction work within railroad, private, State or County highway rights-of-way shall be
performed by the Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the rights-of-way agreement
and of the railroad or highway department having jurisdiction; including procedures of excavating,
backfilling, removing and replacing pavement, maintaining and safeguarding traffic, inspection
procedures of jacking pipes and encasing pipes under railroads and highways, etc. All required
construction permits and surety bonds shall be furnished by the Contractor before commencing
work, At the conclusion of the work, the Contractor shall furnish a written statement from the
railroads and highway departments that work in rights-of-way under their jurisdiction has been
completed to their satisfaction.

45



Article 19 - PROTECTION AND SAFETY

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

Protection Against Accident

The Contractor shall put up and shall maintain during the continuance of the work
such barriers, lights and other protective devices and watchmen, when necessary, as
will effectively prevent any accident in consequence of his work, and he shall be
liable for all accidents and damages occasioned in any way by his acts or neglect, or
by the acts or neglect of his agents, employees, or workmen,

Responsibility for Damage to Work

The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for loss or damage to the work during
the entire construction period resulting from caving earth and from storms, floods,
frosts, and other adverse weather conditions, and from all other causes whatsoever not
directly due to the acts or neglect of the City, and shall turn the finished work over to
the City in good condition and repair at the time of the final estimate. This
responsibility of the Contractor shall cover all these elements included as extra work
under this Contract in exactly the same manner as the regular work is covered.

Responsibility for Adjoining Structures

The Contractor shall have full responsibility for the protection of all property,
driveways, buildings, fences, and other structures, and their foundations, along (or
near) the line of the work, and shall indemnify, defend and save harmless the City of
Pontiac, including all elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers,
all boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, employees,
volunteers and others working on behalf of the City, against all damages or alleged
damages to any such structure arising out of his work.

No driveway shall be entirely closed to travel, even temporarily, except with the
written consent of the Engineer, previously obtained. Highways must be suitably
posted during the period in which construction work is in progress in them, and the
Contractor shall be responsible for this precaution. Suitable bridges must be built
across trenches at highway crossings to facilitate travel, and this same requirement
shall apply likewise to private roadways.

Responsibility for Water Courses

The Contractor shall maintain in continuous and effective service all drains and
water courses touched during the progress of the work. If it should become
necessary, temporarily, to divert or obstruct the flow of any such water course or
drain, written consent must first be obtained from the Engineer, and the Contractor
shall assume full responsibility for the consequences.

46



19.5

19.6

19.7

Responsibility for Utilities

Certain underground structures and utilities have been shown as an aid to the
Contractor, but the City does not guarantee their location or that other underground
structures or utilities may not be encountered. It shall be the responsibility of the
Contractor to make all arrangements with the owners of the respective utilities for the
establishment of their location, prior to beginning the construction.

The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for the protection of all utilities, water,
sewer, gas, telephone, or any other, either public or private, along or near the line of
work, and will be held responsible for any damages to such utilities arising from his
operations. If for the Contractor's convenience he desires that any portion of the
utilities be moved to facilitate his operations, he shall make all necessary
arrangements with the owner of the respective utilities, and pay all costs resulting
from this work.

In cases where utilities, water, sewer, gas, telephone or any other, either public or
private, are directly in the line of the structures being constructed, such as those being
within the permissible limits of a sewer excavation or pavement excavation, and the
City deems it necessary that the said utility be moved, the said company or
companies, agents or superintendents will be notified by the City Engineer to remove
the same within a specified time. The Contractor shall not interfere with said utility
or any portion thereof until the expiration of the time specified in said notice. The
Contractor will not be held responsible for any costs resulting from this work.

In all cases where there is a dispute between the Contractor and the owner of the
respective utility as to necessity of moving or repairing same within City-owned right
of way, the City Engineer shall make the final decision in the matter, which decision
shall be binding on the respective parties, and order the respective parties to proceed
accordingly.

Protection of Trees and Shrubbery

The Contractor shall take ample precautions to protect all trees and ornamental
shrubbery from injury by workmen, teams, or other agencies connected with his
work. Such trees or shrubbery shall be surrounded by protective posts or fencing
before construction work begins if, in the judgment of the Engineer, such precautions
are necessary.

Protection of Reference Points
The Contractor shall carefully preserve monuments, bench matrks, reference points
and stakes and, in case of willful or careless destruction, he shall be charged with the

resulting expense and shall be responsible for any mistakes that may be caused by
their unnecessary loss or disturbance.

47



19.8

19.9

19.10

19.11

Removal of Water

The Contractor shall provide all necessary pumps, pipes, drains, ditches, dikes, and
other means for adequately protecting the work from damage by water, and he shall
so protect it during the entire construction period. No direct payment will be made to
the Contractor for removing or pumping water, or for any of the means employed in
protecting the work against damage by water, but compensation therefor shall be
considered as being included in the unit prices fixed in this Contract for the several
structures.

Water pumped or delivered from trenches and excavations shall be disposed of in
such manner as will not injure the public health, nor damage public or private
property, nor injure any work complete or in progress.

Dust Control

The Contractor shall apply water or dust palliative, or both, for the alleviation or
prevention of dust nuisance caused by his operations. Dust control operations shall
be performed by the Contractor at the time ordered by the Engineer, but failure of the
Engineer to issue such order will not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility.

Such dust control materials shall be applied as often as is necessary to control the
dust. The use of road oils and waste oils to control dust is prohibited unless
authorized by the Engineer.

No direct payment will be made for any such work performed or material used to
control dust under this Contract.

Control of Noise

The Contractor shall eliminate noise to as great an extent as possible at all times. Air
compressors shall be equipped with silencers, and the exhaust of all gasoline motors
and other power equipment shall be provided with mufflers. In the vicinity of
hospitals, libraries and schools, special precautions shall be taken to avoid noise and
other nuisance, and the Contractor shall require strict observances of all pertinent
ordinances and regulations. Any blasting permitted in such locations shall be done
with reduced charges.

Erosion Control

The Contractor shall comply with the Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Act,
Act 347 of 1972, as amended by Act 197, Public Acts of 1974 and local City or
County soil erosion control programs. Also, should the local agency determine that
the construction operation is in violation of the act and cites the City, the Contractor

shall take immediate action, as directed by the City, to insure compliance with the
Act.

48



19.12

19.13

19.14

First Aid

The Contractor shall at all times provide a satisfactory first aid kit at the job site.
Emergency phone numbers for police, doctors, and emergency vehicles shall also be
kept in the first aid kit.

Ventilation and Safety in Gas

Positive and approved means shall be provided by the Contractor for the detection of
gas in existing sewers. If gas is encountered and cannot be removed by natural
ventilation, then ventilating equipment of sufficient capacity and suitable type to
adequately and quickly dilute the gas shall be promptly installed and operated. In all
work where gas is present, no flame or other open light shall be used on the work.
The Contractor shall be required to enforce a "no smoking" ban on all workmen
present.

Sanitary Regulations

The Contractor shall provide for his employees an abundant and convenient supply of
drinking water, taken from the City mains or from some other safe and wholesome
source, and shall give orders against the use for drinking purposes of any other water
in the neighborhood known to be prejudicial to the health of the workers.

The Contractor shall provide at convenient points, properly secluded from
observation, a sufficient number of sanitary conveniences, and shall maintain them
strictly without nuisance and without offense to the public or to residents in the
vicinity of the work. The number, location, character and conditions of maintenance
of these utilities must at all times be such as will meet the approval of the Engineer.

Article 20 - CLEANING UP

Upon completion of the actual work of construction, the Contractor shall clean up and leave

in neat condition all the premises which he has occupied during the construction period. Before
the time of the final estimate, the Contractor shall remove from the premises all surplus
excavation, debris, and rubbish, and all unused materials, together with all tools and equipment,
or shall deposit them at such points and in such manner as the Engineer may require.

Before leaving the grounds, he shall replace or put in good repair all fences, telephone poles

and lines, roadways, and other property that may have been damaged by him during the progress
of the work. Damage to crops within the limits of the right-of-way or street will be paid by the
City, but the Contractor must assume responsibility for all damages outside of this right-of-way.

3

49



Article 21 - PROGRESS SCHEDULE

The CONTRACTOR shall submit a Progress Schedule to the City for review and approval
within ten (10) days of receipt of the "NOTICE OF AWARD". The Contractor shall address the
following items in the proposed schedule.

21.1  All work on Part C and Part D streets (Woodward Avenue (BL-75), Russell /
Whittemore Street Intersection, S. Merrimac Street, and St. Clair Street) shall be
completed on or before November 12, 2021.

21.2  All work on Part A and Part B streets (Cherry Hill Drive, Fairmount Avenue,

Starlight Lane, Grandville Court, Bynan Lane / Gambrell Drive, Omar Street, Granada
Drive , and W. Columbia Avenue) shall be completed on or before July 30, 2022.

50



CONTRACTOR'S DECLARATION

I hereby declare that I have not, during the period of

to AD., 20 , performed any work, furnished

any material, sustained any loss, damage or delay for any reason, including soil conditions
encountered or created, or otherwise done anything for which I shall ask, demand, sue for, or
claim compensation from the City of Pontiac or his agents, in addition to the regular items set
forth in the contract named or numbered 2021 Local Street Improvement Project and dated __

AD.,20 , for

executed between myself and the City of Pontiac, and in the Change Orders for work issued by
the City in writing as provided thereunder, except as I hereby make claim for additional

compensation and/or extension of time as set forth on the itemized statement attached hereto.

There (is) (is not) an itemized statement attached.

Date:

By:

Title;

51



CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF MICHIGAN )

)SS
COUNTY OF )
The undersigned , hereby
represents that on , he (it) was awarded a contract by the City of Pontiac,

hereinafter called the Owner, to

in accordance with the terms and conditions of Contract 2021 Local Street Improvement
Project and the undersigned further represents that the subject work has now been accomplished
and the said contract has now been completed.

The undersigned hereby warrants and certifies that all of his (its) indebtedness arising by
reason of the said contract has been fully paid or satisfactorily secured; and that all claims from
subcontractors and others for labor and material used in accomplishing the said project, as well
as all other claims arising from the performance of the said contract, have been fully paid or
satisfactorily settled. The undersigned further agrees that, if any such claim should hereafter
arise he (it) shall assume responsibility for the same immediately upon request to do so by the
Owner.

The undersigned, for a valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
does further hereby waive, release and relinquish any and all claims or right of lien which the
undersigned now has or may hereafter acquire upon the subject premises for labor and material
used in accomplishing said project owned by the Owner.

This affidavit is freely and voluntarily given with full knowledge of the facts, on this
day of AD. 20 .

Contractor:
By:
Title:

Subscribed and sworn and to before me, a Notary Public in and for County, Michigan,

on this day of A.D. 20 .

Notary Public
My Commission expires:

52



NOTICES TO BIDDERS,
SPECIFICATIONS
AND
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

53



CITY OF PONTIAC
NOTICE TO BIDDERS

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
1 of 1

NFE: JCK 2021-04-28
All work shall be done in accordance with the City of Pontiac Standard Details and the Michigan
Department of Transportation 2012 Standard Specifications for Construction and the latest

revisions to the Standard Details as published by MDOT except as specifically modified in the
Contract Documents

54



CITY OF PONTIAC
NOTICE TO BIDDERS

JOB SITE SAFETY
1 of 1
NFE: JCK 2021-04-26

Neither the professional activities of the Engineer, nor the presence of the Engineer or its
employees and consuitants at, shall relieve the Contractor and any other entity of their obligations,
duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequence,
techniques or procedures necessary for performing, superintending or coordinating all portions of
the work of construction in accordance with the Contract Documents and any health or safety
precautions required by any regulatory agencies. The Engineer and its personnel have no
authority to exercise any control over any construction Contractor or other entity or their employees
in connection with their work or any health or safety precautions. The Contractor agrees that the
Contractor is solely responsible for job site safety. The Contractor also agrees, to the extent
permitted by law, that the Owner, Engineer and Engineer’s consultants shall be indemnified by the
Contractor for claims, demands, damages, judgements, losses, interest, attorney’s fees, litigation
costs and expenses of any kind, at any time, for bodily injury and or property damage, arising out
of or in any way connected to the Contractor's work or acts related to the Project. The Contractor
also agrees that the Owner, Engineer and Engineer’s consultants shall be made additional
insureds under the Contractor's general liability insurance policy.



CITY OF PONTIAC

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

BI-WEEKLY PROGRESS MEETING
1 of 1
NFE: JCK 2021-04-26

Bidders are advised that after the commencement of construction activities, the Contractor will be
required to attend a bi-weekly progress meeting with the Engineer and any other interested parties.
Dates will be selected at the beginning of the project and the meeting will be held at the office of
the Engineer, or as otherwise arranged. The Contractor's project representative along with
representatives from all critical subcontractors, as requested by the Engineer, shall be present at
the meeting to discuss the status of the project and to coordinate the work for the following two (2)
weeks.



CITY OF PONTIAC

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

PERMIT REQUIREMENTS
10f1
NFE: JCK 2021-04-27

Bidders are advised that the following permits are required for construction of this project:

MDOT Right-of-Way Permit: A permit to perform work or place traffic control devices within
the Michigan Department of Transportation right-of-way shall
be provided to the contractor. The Contractor shall be
responsible for meeting all of the requirements outlined in the
permit.

Canadian National Railroad: A permit to perform work in the right-of-way of the Canadian
National Railroad at Woodward Ave. shall be provided to the
contractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for meeting all
of the requirements outlined in the permit.

Water Use Permit: A permit will be required to access City fire hydrants to obtain
water for construction, cleaning, dust control, etc. The
Contractor must obtain this permit from the Oakland County
Water Resources Commissioner. As a part of this permit a
meter will be provided by the County to measure the usage of
water. Backflow prevention must be maintained at all times.
Payment for any fees or for water usage will be the
responsibility of the Contractor.

Structure Adjustments: A permit from the Oakland County Water Resources
Commissioner for adjusting sanitary and water structures
covers in the right-of-way will be provided to the contractor.
The contractor shall be responsible for all fees associated
with said permit, and shall be responsible for meeting all of
the requirements outlined in the permit.



CITY OF PONTIAC

SPECIAL PROVISON
FOR
PROGRESS CLAUSE
1 of 1
NFE: JCK 2021-07-30

The Contractor shall begin work within ten (10) calendar days after receiving the “Notice to
Proceed” or on or before the date designated as the starting date in the detailed Progress
Schedule. The completion dates for this project shall be as follows:

s Allwork on Part C and Part D streets (Woodward Avenue (BL-75), Russell /
Whittemore Street Intersection, S. Merrimac Street, and St. Clair Street) shall be
completed on or before November 12, 2021.

s Allwork on Part A and Part B streets (Cherry Hill Drive, Fairmount Avenue, Starlight
Lane, Grandville Court, Bynan Lane / Gambrell Drive, Omar Street, Granada Drive ,
and W. Columbia Avenue) shall be completed on or before July 30, 2022.

The Contractor shall perform all work in accordance with the traffic control plans provided in
the construction drawings. Temporary traffic and detours shall be maintained at all times.
The Contractor shall complete all restoration work and pavement markings as specified in
the construction drawings and as directed by the Engineer.

Failure by the Contractor to meet the above requirements and dates wili result in the
Contractor being assessed liquidated damages in accordance with the Special Provision for
Schedule of Liquidated Damages for Oversight.

The Contractor shall also be assessed liquidated damages in accordance with the Special
Provision for Schedule of Liquidated Damages for Oversight for any days exceeding ten (10)
between the placement of the leveling and wearing courses of HMA on any street. The City
Engineer will consider all requests for extensions of time based on weather or extenuating
circumstances that prevent HMA paving operations.

The low bidder for the work covered by this proposal will be required to attend a
preconstruction meeting and to submit a detailed progress schedule for approval by the
Engineer. The progress schedule shall include, as a minimum, the starting and completion
dates of all items of work, as well as the date the project is to be completed. The Contractor
shall schedule their work such that no more than three (3) business days will elapse between
major items of work. It is the intent of this provision that a continuous flow of operations will
be maintained from start to finish.



CITY OF PONTIAC
NOTICE TO BIDDERS

UTILITY COORDINATION
1 0of 1
NFE: JCK 2021-04-26

Description

The Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate construction activities with the owners of utilities as
stated in Section 104.07 of the 2012 MDOT Standard Specifications for Construction. In addition,
for the protection of underground utilities, the Contractor shall follow the requirements in Section
107.12 of the 2012 MDOT Standard Specifications for Construction. Contractor delay claims,
resulting from a utility, will be determined based upon Section 109.03 of the 2012 MDOT Standard
Specifications for Construction.

The following public utilities have facilities located within the right-of-way:

Electric - Distribution: Telephone:

DTE Energy AT&T

1530 Trombly Street 54 N. Milt Street

Detroit, MI 48211 Pontiac, Ml 48342

Contact: Laura Toporowski 630-336-2020 Contact: Matt Silwa 248-877-0762

Gas: Cable Television:

Consumers Energy Comcast Cable

4600 Coolidge Hwy 25626 Telegraph Rd

Royal Oak, Ml 48073 Southfield, MI 48033

Contact: Ernie Martyniuk 248-433-5868 Contact: Michael Marlow 248-809-2765
Sanitary Sewer: Electric — Community Lighting:
Oakland County W.R.C. DTE Energy

1 Public Works Dr 15600 19 Mile Rd

Waterford, Ml 48328 Clinton Twp, M1 48038

Contact; Rick DeVisch 248-858-4939 Contact: Reggie Brown 586-412-3207
Water Main City of Pontiac — Street Lighting and Storm Drain
QOakland County W.R.C. City of Pontiac ~ Engineering Department
1 Public Works Dr 47450 Woodward Ave.

Waterford, Ml 48328 Pontiac, M| 48342

Contact: Amy Ploof 248-452-2271 Contact: Abdul Siddiqui 248-758-3615

Storm drain, water main and street lighting improvements shall be constructed as identified in the
construction plans or specifications.

On all projects: “Three Working Days before you Dig — Call MISS DIG (800)482-7171"

Existing service facilities, which are located within grading or structure limits, will be moved or
adjusted by the owners to locations or elevations designated by the Engineer or will be removed
entirely from the right of way. Owners of public utilities will not be required by the City to move
additional poles or structures in order to facilitate the operation of construction equipment unless it
is determined by the Engineer that such poles or structures constitute a hazard to the public or are
extraordinarily dangerous to the Contractor's operations,



CITY OF PONTIAC
NOTICE TO BIDDERS

USE OF CITY WATER
1 of 1
NFE: JCK 2021-04-26

Description

Water from the City of Pontiac water distribution system is available for use by the Contractor. The
Contractor MUST apply for and have a permit for water use in the possession of the individual
taking the water from the City system. Unauthorized use will not be permitted. The Oakland
County Sheriff's Department has been instructed to halt any unauthorized use of City water.

As a part of this permit, a meter will be provided by the Oakland County Water Resources
Commissioner to measure the usage of water. Backflow prevention must be maintained at all
times. A permit fee will be due upon issuance of the permit. A usage fee will be due upon the
return of the provided meter.

The Contractor is advised to contact Amy Ploof at 248-858-0958 or ploofa@oakgov.com to
ascertain the procedures for obtaining a permit and for paying the required fees for such use.

Measurement and Basis of Payment

The cost of the permit fee and metered use of the City’s water supply is the responsibility of the
Contractor and shall be considered incidental to the project and shall not be paid for separately.



NFE: JCK

CITY OF PONTIAC

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

STAGING OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES
1 of 1
2021-04-27

Bidders are advised that if they intend on staging their activities outside of the public right-of-way,
approval for a variance from the City of Pontiac Zoning Board of Appeals is required. It shall be the
responsibility of the Contractor to make application to the City of Pontiac’s Office of Land Use and
Strategic Planning. The procedure for making this application includes;

1.
2

o~

Obtain and complete the property application forms and pay fees.

File the forms with the Office of Land Use and Strategic Planning and include the

following items:

a. A fully dimensioned and scaled plot plan showing property lines and locations of all
buildings.

b. A clear description of any proposed change of use to include present use and a
detailed accounting of the new use.

¢. Any additional information required by the Office of Land Use and Strategic
Planning, for proper processing of the application.

The request will be placed on the agenda of the Zoning Board of Appeals as soon as

possible.

The applicant will be notified by mail of the hearing time and date.

A variance, if granted, will be void six (6) months after date of approval if hot acted

upon the applicant.

A variance, if granted, does not constitute permission to proceed without first obtaining

the necessary permits to complete the required work.

Furthermore, if City of Pontiac property is to be used for staging activities, an agreement between
the Contractor and the City, allowing the Contractor the use of the property, shall be approved by
the City prior to the Contractor accessing the property.

The costs associated with the Contractor obtaining approval from the City of Pontiac Zoning Board
of Appeals shall not be paid for separately.



CITY OF PONTIAC

NOTICE TO BIDDERS
FOR
DRIVEWAY ACCESS, TEMPORARY
1 0of1
NFE: JCK 2021-04-29

Description

Maintain access to all driveways during construction except that each drive may be closed
for no more than 3 days to pour and cure the concrete drive, sidewalk behind the drive, and
portion of the driveway behind the sidewalk. The Contractor shall notify each resident three
working days prior to closing a drive. Temporary materials approved of by the Engineer,
such as maintenance gravel may be used, but must be used in a manner that ensures the
material does not infilirate the underlying material to remain in place. This work will NOT be
paid for separately but considered incidental to adjacent pay items.



CITY OF PONTIAC
SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
SWEEPING

1 of 1
NFE: JCK 2021-04-27

Description

This work shall consist of sweeping pavements, as often as necessary, in the construction area, as
directed by the Engineer.

A final cleaning shall be completed within five (5) working days prior to the opening of the roadway.
Equipment

The machine that is used shall be self-propeiied or towed street sweeper, equipped with pickup
attachments and curb brushes.

Measurement and Basis of Payment

The completed work for Sweeping shall not be paid for separately, but shall be considered included
in other items of work on the project.



CITY OF PONTIAC

SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
DUST CONTROL
1 of 1
NFE: JCK 2021-04-26

Description

The Contractor shall take such precautions and do such work so as to effectively control dust
caused by his operations on all streets that are affected by the construction of the project.

During each seven (7) day period that the street is under construction, the Contractor shall supply
and apply water to the grade in such amounts that dust will be kept to a minimum. The water shall
be applied to the grade at least once during each seven (7) day period and at such other times and
places as the Engineer may direct. The Contractor shall schedule the application of water to be
done on the Thursday of each week. The rate of application shali be 0.5 gallons per square yard.

In the event that the ground is already sufficiently wet from natural causes, the Contractor may not
be required to apply water to the grade. The Contractor's equipment and labor to apply the water
to the grade shall be on site every Thursday ready and equipped to apply water. The Engineer
shall have sole direction as to whether or not water is required and the Engineer's decision shall be
final.

Measurement and Basis of Payment

The completed work for Dust Control shall not be paid for separately.

In the event that the City deems it necessary to perform this work for the Contractor, the City shall
have the work done and charge the cost thereof against any monies that may be due or may
become due to the Contractor.



CITY OF PONTIAC

SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
PROOF ROLLING
1 of 1
NFE: JCK 2021-04-27

Description

This work shall be done in accordance with the Michigan Department of Transportation 2012
Standard Specifications for Construction, except as follows:.

Construction Methods

After pavement removal and/or excavation the Engineer will inspect the condition of an existing
aggregate base course or underlying subgrade. If in the opinion of the Engineer an area of the
roadway appears unsuitable for paving they may order the Contractor to proof roll the area to
identify unstable areas. Proof rolling must be scheduled so as not to delay the time of completion
for opening the roadway to traffic, and be mutually convenient for the Engineer and the Contractor,
The Engineer must be present to observe the proof rolling activity.

After any require proof rolling is completed then the Engineer may order subgrade undercutting,
manipulation, or other methods to improve the pavement subgrade and identify the limits of work.

Any required subgrade improvements ordered by the Engineer will not be a basis to extend the
time of completion, unless in the opinion of the Engineer an extension of time is warranted.

Measurement and Basis of Payment

The work of proof rolling will not be measured separately and shall be considered incidental to the
project.



12SP-501J-05

MICHIGAN
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
ACCEPTANCE OF HOT MIX ASPHALT MIXTURE ON LOCAL AGENCY PROJECTS

CFS:KPK 10f7 APPR:CJB:JWB:07-05-16
FHWA:APPR:07-05-16

a. Description. This special provision provides sampling and testing requirements for local
agency projects using the roller method and the nuclear density gauge testing. Provide the hot
mix asphait (HMA) mixture in accordance with the requirements of the standard specifications,
except where modified herein.

b. Materials. Provide aggregates, mineral filler (if required), and asphalt binder to produce
a mixture proportioned within the master gradation limits shown in the contract, and meeting the
uniformity tolerance limits in Table 1.

Table 1: Uniformity Tolerance Limits for HMA Mixtures

Parameter Top and Leveling Course Base Course
Number Description Range 1 (a) Range 2 Range 1 (a) Range 2
1 % Binder Content -0.30to +0.40 +0.50 -0.30 to +0.40 $0.50
o # 8 and Larger Sieves 5.0 +8.0 7.0 19.0
‘B
2 & | # 30 Sieve +4.0 16.0 16.0 19.0
o
= | #200 Sieve +1.0 +2.0 +2.0 3.0
3 Crushed Particle Content (b) Below 10% | Below 15% Below 10% Below 15%
a. This range allows for normal mixture and testing variations. The mixture must be proportioned to
test as closely as possible to the Job-Mix-Formula (JMF).
b. Deviation from JMF.

Parameter number 2 as shown in Table 1 is aggregate gradation. Each sieve will be evaluated
on one of the three gradation tolerance categories. If more than one sieve is exceeding Range 1
or Range 2 tolerances, only the one with the largest exceedance will be counted as the gradation
parameter.

The master gradation should be maintained throughout production; however, price adjustments
will be based on Table 1. Aggregates which are to be used in plant-mixed HMA mixtures must

not contain topsaoil, clay, or loam.

c. Construction. Submit a Mix Design and a JMF to the Engineer. Do not begin production
and placement of the HMA until receipt of the Engineer's approval of the JMF. Maintain the binder
content, aggregate gradation, and the crushed particle content of the HMA mixture within the
Range 1 uniformity tolerance limits in Table 1. For mixtures meeting the definition of top or
leveling course, field regress air void content to 3.5 percent with liquid asphalt cement unless



12SP-501J-05
CFS:KPK 20f7 07-05-16

specified otherwise on HMA application estimate. For mixtures meeting the definition of base
course, field regress air void content to 3.0 percent with liquid asphalt cement uniess specified
otherwise on HMA application estimate.

Ensure all persons performing Quality Control (QC) and Quality Assurance (QA) HMA field
sampling are “Local Agency HMA Sampling Qualified” samplers. At the Pre-Production or Pre-
Construction meeting, the Engineer will determine the method of sampling to be used. Ensure all
sampling is done in accordance with MTM 313 (Sampling HMA Paving Mixtures) or MTM 324
(Sampling HMA Paving Mixtures Behind the Paver). Samples are to be taken from separate
hauling loads.

For production/mainline type paving, obtain a minimum of two samples, each being 20,000 grams,
each day of production, for each mix type. The Engineer will sample and maintain possession of
the sample. Sampling from the paver hopper is prohibited. Each sample will be divided into two
10,000 gram parts with one part being for initial testing and the other part being held for possible
dispute resolution testing. Obtain a minimum of three samples for each mix type regardless of
" the number of days of production.

Obtain samples that are representative of the day’s paving. Sample collection is to be spaced
throughout the pianned tonnage. One sample will be obtained in the first half of the tonnage and
the second sample will be obtained in the second half of the tonnage. If planned paving is reduced
or suspended, when paving resumes, the remaining sampling must be representative of the
original intended sampling timing.

Ensure all persons performing testing are Bit Level One cenified or Bit QA/QC Technician
certified.

Ensure daily test samples are obtained, except, if the first test results show that the HMA mixture
is in specification, the Engineer has the option of not testing additional samples from that day.

At the Pre-Production or Pre-Construction meeting, the Engineer and Contractor will collectively
determine the test method for measuring asphalt content (AC ) using MTM 319 (Determination of
Asphalt Content from Asphalt Paving Mixtures by the Ignition Method) or MTM 325 (Quantitative
Extraction of Bitumen from HMA Paving Mixtures). Back calculation will not be allowed for
determining asphait content.

Ensure all labs performing local agency acceptance testing are qualified labs per the HMA
Production Manual and participate in the MDOT round robin process, or they must be AASHTO
Materials Reference Laboratory (AMRL) accredited for AASHTO T 30 or T 27, and AASHTO T
164 or T 308. Ensure on non-National Highway System (NHS) routes, Contractor labs are made
available, and may be used, but they must be qualified labs as previously stated. Contractor labs
may not be used on NHS routes. Material acceptance testing will be completed by the Engineer
within 14 calendar days, except holidays and Sundays, for projects with less than 5,000 tons (plan
quantity) of HMA and within 7 calendars days, except holidays and Sundays, for projects with
5,000 tons (plan quantity) or more of HMA, after the Engineer has obtained the samples. QA test
results will be provided to the Contractor after the Engineer receives the QC test results. Failure
on the part of the Engineer or the laboratory to provide Quality Assurance test results within the
specified time frame does not relieve the Contractor of their responsibility to provide an asphalt
mix within specifications.



12SP-501J-05
CFS:KPK 3of7 07-05-16

The correlation procedure for ignition oven will be established as follows. Asphalt binder content
based on ignition method from MTM 319. Gradation (ASTM D 5444) and Crushed particle content
(MTM 117) based on aggregate from MTM 319. The incineration temperature will be established
at the Pre-Production Meeting. The Contractor will provide a laboratory mixture sample to the
acceptance laboratory to establish the correction factor for each mix. Ensure this sample is
provided to the Engineer a minimum of 14 calendar days prior to production.

For production/mainline type paving, the mixture may be accepted by visual inspection up to a
quantity of 500 tons per mixture type, per project (not per day). For non-production type paving
defined as driveways, approaches, and patching, visual inspection may be allowed regardless of
the tonnage.

The mixture will be considered out-of-specification, as determined by the acceptance tests, if for
any one mixture, two consecutive tests per parameter, (for Parameter 2, two consecutive
aggregate gradations on one sieve) are outside Range 1 or Range 2 tolerance limits. If a
parameter is outside of Range 1 tolerance limits and the second consecutive test shows that the
parameter is outside of Range 2, then it will be considered to be a Range 1 out-of-specification.
Consecutive refers to the production order and not necessarily the testing order. Out-of-
specification mixtures are subject to a price adjustment per the Measurement and Payment
section of this special provision.

Contractor operations will be suspended when the mixture is determined to be out-of-
specification, but contract time will continue to run. The Engineer may issue a Notice of Non-
Compliance with Contract Requirements (Form 1165), if the Contractor has not suspended
operations and taken corrective action. Submit a revised JMF or proposed alterations to the plant
and/or materials to achieve the JMF to the Engineer. Effects on the Aggregate Wear Index (AWI)
and mix design properties will be taken into consideration. Production and placement cannot
resume until receipt of the Engineer’s approval to proceed.

Pavement in-place density will be measured using one of two approved methods. The method
used for measuring in-place density will be agreed upon at a pre-production or pre-construction
meeting.

Pavement in-place density tests will be completed by the Engineer during paving operations and
prior to traffic staging changes. Pavement in-place density acceptance testing will be completed
by the Engineer prior to paving of subsequent lifts and being open to traffic.

Option 1 — Direct Density Method

Use of a nuclear density gauge requires measuring the pavement density using the Gmm from
the JMF for the density control target. The required in-place density of the HMA mixture must be
92.0 to 98.0 percent of the density control target. Nuclear density testing and frequency will be
in accordance with the MDOT Density Testing and Inspection Manual.

Option 2 — Roller Method

The Engineer may use the Roller Method with a nuclear or non-nuclear density gauge to
document achieving optimal density as discussed below.



12SP-501J-05
CFS:KPK 4 of 7 07-05-16

Use of the density gauge requires establishing a rolling pattern that will achieve the required in-
place density. The Engineer will measure pavement density with a density gauge using the Gmm
from the JMF for the density control target.

Use of the Roller Method requires developing and establishing density frequency curves, and
meeting the requirements of Table 2. A density frequency curve is defined as the measurement
and documentation of each pass of the finished roller until the in-place density results indicate a
decrease in value. The previous recording will be deemed the optimal density. The Contractor
is responsible for establishing and documenting an initial or QC rolling pattern that achieves the
optimal in-place density. When the density frequency curve is used, the Engineer will run and
document the density frequency curve for each half day of production to determine the number of
passes to achieve the maximum density. Table 5, located at the end of this special provision, can
be used as an aid in developing the density frequency curve. The Engineer will perform density
tests using an approved nuclear or non-nuclear gauge per the manufacturer's recommended
procedures.

Table 2: Minimum Number of Rollers Recommended Based on Placement Rate

Average Laydown Rate, Number of Rollers Required (a)
Square Yards per Hour Compaction Finish
Less than 600 1 1 (b)
601 - 1200 1 1
1201 - 2400 2 1
2401 - 3600 | 3 1
3601 and More 4 1
a. Number of rollers may increase based on density frequency curve.
b. The compaction rolier may be used as the finish roller also.

After placement, roll the HMA mixture as soon after placement as the roller is able to bear without
undue displacement or cracking. Start rolling longitudinally at the sides of the lanes and proceed
toward the center of the pavement, overlapping on successive trips by at least half the width of
the drum. Ensure each required roller is 8 tons minimum in weight unless otherwise approved by
the Engineer.

Ensure the initial breakdown roller is capable of vibratory compaction and is a maximum of 500
feet behind the paving operations. The maximum allowable speed of each roller is 3 miles per
hour (mph) or 4.5 feet per second. Ensure all compaction rollers complete a minimum of two
complete rolling cycles prior to the mat temperature cooling to 180 degrees Fahrenheit (F).
Continue finish rolling until all roller marks are eliminated and no further compaction is possible.
The Engineer will verify and document that the roller pattern has been adhered to. The Engineer
can stop production when the roller pattern is not adhered to.

d. Measurement and Payment. The completed work, as described, will be measured and
paid for using applicable pay items as described in subsection 501.04 of the Standard
Specifications for Construction, or the contract, except as modified below.



12SP-501J-05
CFS:KPK 5of7 07-05-16

Base Price. Price established by the Department to be used in calculating incentives and
adjustments to pay items and shown in the contract.

If acceptance tests, as described in section c. of this special provision, show that a Table 1 mixture
parameter exceeds the Range 1, but not the Range 2, tolerance limits, that mixture parameter
will be subject to a 10 percent penalty. The 10 percent penalty will be assessed based on the
acceptance tests only unless the Contractor requests that the 10,000 gram sample part retained
for possible dispute resolution testing be tested. The Contractor has 4 calendar days from receipt
of the acceptance test results to notify the Engineer, in writing, that dispute resolution testing is
requested. The Contractors QC test results for the corresponding QA test results must result in
an overall payment greater than QA test resuits otherwise the QA tests will not be allowed to be
disputed. The Engineer has 4 calendar days to send the dispute resolution sampie to the lab
once dispute resolution testing is requested. The dispute resolution sample will be sent to an
independent lab selected by the Local Agency, and the resultant dispute test results will be used
to determine the penalty per parameter, if any. Ensure the independent lab is a MDOT QA/QC
qualified lab or an AMRL HMA quaiified lab. The independent lab must not have conflicts of
interest with the Contractor or Local Agency. If the dispute testing results show that the mixture
parameter is out-of-specification, the Contractor will pay for the cost of the dispute resolution
testing and the contract base price for the material will be adjusted, based on all test result
parameters from the dispute tests, as shown in Table 3 and Table 4. If the dispute test resuits do
not confirm the mixture parameter is out-of-specification, then the Local Agency will pay for the
cost of the dispute resolution testing and no price adjustment is required.

If acceptance tests, as described in section c. of this special provision, show that a Table 1 mixture
parameter exceeds the Range 2 tolerance limits, the 10,000 gram sample part retained for
possible dispute resolution testing will be sent, within 4 calendar days, to the MDOT Central
Laboratory for further testing. The MDOT Central Laboratory’s test results will be used to
determine the penalty per mixture parameter, if any. If the MDOT Central Laboratory’s results do
not confirm the mixture parameter is out-of-specification, then no price adjustment is required. If
the MDOT Central Laboratory’s results show that the mixture is out-of-specification and the
Engineer approves leaving the out-of-specification mixture in place, the contract base price for
the material will be adjusted, based on all parameters, as shown in Table 3 and Table 4.

In the case that the Contractor disputes the results of the test of the second sample obtained for
a particular day of production, the test turn-around time frames given would apply to the second
test and there would be no time frame on the first test.

The laboratory (MDOT Central Laboratory or independent lab) will complete ali Dispute
Resolution testing and return test results to the Engineer, who will provide them to the Contractor,
within 13 calendar days upon receiving the Dispute Resolution samples.

In all cases, when penalties are assessed, the penalty applies to each parameter, up to two
parameters, that is out of specification.



CFS:KPK

6 of 7

12SP-501J-05
07-05-16

Table 3: Penalty Per Parameter

Mixture Parameter out- Mixture Parameter out-of-
of-Specification per Specification per Dispute Resolution Price Adjustment per Parameter
Acceptance Tests Test Lab
NO N/A None
NO None
YES Outside Range 1 but not Range 2:
0,
' YES decrease by 10%
Outside Range 2. decrease by 25%

The quantity of material receiving a price adjustment is defined as the material produced from the
time the first out-of-specification sample was taken until the time the sample leading to the first
in-specification test was taken.

Each parameter of Table 1 is evaluated with the total price adjustment applied to the contract
base price based on a sum of the two parameter penalties resulting in the highest total price
adjustment as per Table 4. For example, if three parameters are out-of-specification, with two
parameters outside Range 1 of Table 1 tolerance limits, but within Range 2 of Table 1 limits and
one parameter outside of Range 2 of Table 1 tolerance limits and the Engineer approves leaving
the mixture in place, the total price adjustment for that quantity of material is 35 percent.

Table 4; Calculating Total Price Adjustment

Cost Adjustment as a Sum of the Two Highest Parameter Penalties

Number of Parameters Range(s) Outside of Tolerance . :
Out-of-Specification Limits of Table 1 per Parameter Total Price Adjustment
Range 1 10%
One
Range 2 25%
Range 1 & Range 1 20%
Two Range 1 & Range 2 35%
Range 2 & Range 2 50%
Range 1, Range 1 & Range 1 20%
Range 1, Range 1 & Range 2 35%
Three
Range 1, Range 2 & Range 2 50%
Range 2, Range 2 & Range 2 50%




CFS:KPK

Tested by:

12SP-501J-05
07-05-16

Table 5: Density Frequency Curve Development

Date/Time:

Route/Location:

Air Temp:

Control Section/Job Number:

Weather:

Mix Type:

Tonnage:;

Gauge:

Producer:;

Depth:

Gmm:

Roller #1  Type:

Pass No.

Density

Temperature

Comments

1

O~NO|OMIWIN

Optimum

Roller #2  Type:

Pass No.

Density

Temperature

Comments

1

Oi~NIO ;| WIN

Optimum

Roller#3 T

pe:

Pass No.

Density

Temperature

Comments

1

OND | WIN

Optimum

Summary:




12SP-604A-10

MICHIGAN
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

SPECIAL PROVISION
FOR
QUALITY CONTROL AND ACCEPTANCE OF PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE
(FOR LOCAL AGENCY PROJECTS ONLY)

CFS:JFS 1 of 21 APPR:TES:DBP:06-14-19
FHWA:APPR:06-14-19

a. Description. The Contractor must administer quality control (QC) and the Department
will administer quality assurance (QA) procedures that will be used for acceptance of and
payment for all Portland cement concrete (PCC) for the project. Except as explicitly modified by
this special provision, all materials, test methods, and PCC mixture requirements of the standard
specifications and the contract apply.

Do not place concrete until the Engineer's daily startup testing verifies that the fresh concrete
properties have been met, in accordance with subsection d.2 of this special provision.

Provide the Engineer a minimum 24 hours notification prior to each concrete placement.
1. Terminology.

Air Content of Fresh Concrete. The recorded total air content of fresh concrete sampled and
tested according to this special provision.

Air Content Test Results. The recorded air content of fresh concrete corresponding to the
strength test specimens that were molded for acceptance.

Alkali-Silica Reactivity (ASR). A chemical reaction which occurs over time within concrete
between high alkaline cement paste and reactive forms of silica found in some aggregates.
In the presence of moisture, an expansive ASR gel is formed which can exert pressure within
the concrete, causing random cracking and premature deterioration of the concrete. See
subsection c¢.5.A of this special provision.

Base Price. Price established by the Department to be used in calculating incentives or
adjustments to pay items and shown in the contract.

Concrete Mix Design. The process, by which the concrete mixture performance characteristics
are defined, based on selected materials, performance requirements, environmental
exposure considerations, placement methods, and other factors that control the plastic and
hardened properties of the concrete in efforts to produce an economical and durable product.

Job Mix Formula (JMF). The actual batch quantities (mixture proportions) of each constituent
included in the concrete mixture, based on adjustments to the target weights attained from
the mix design process, necessary to optimize the concrete mixture properties.

Pay Factor (PF). The factor that is determined according to subsections d.3 of this special
provision, used to calculate the price adjustment for a discrete quantity of concrete relative



12SP-604A-10
CFS:JFS 2 of 21 06-14-19

to its respective level of quality. Pay factor will not exceed 1.00. Therefore, there will never
be a positive pay adjustment.

Price Adjustment (ADJ). The price adjustment applied to the quantity of concrete represented
by the respective quality index analysis described in subsections d.3 of this special provision.

Production Lot. A discrete cubic yard quantity of concrete containing the same JMF and used
for the same application, as described in subsection d.2 of this special provision.

Quality Assurance (QA). Activities administered by the Engineer dealing with acceptance of
the product, including, but not limited to, materials selection, sampling, testing, construction
inspection, and review of Contractor QC documentation. All concrete QA sampling and
testing will be administered by the Department. Department administered QA is described
in section d of this special provision.

Quality Control (QC). All activities administered by the Contractor to monitor, assess, and
adjust production and placement processes to ensure the final product will meet the
specified levels of quality, including, but not limited to, training, materials selection, sampling,
testing, project oversight and documentation. Contractor administered QC is described in
section ¢ of this special provision.

QC Action Limits. A range of values established by the Contractor in the QC plan that, if
exceeded, requires that corrective action be taken by the Contractor to restore the continuity
and uniformity of the mixture and methods in conformance with specification requirements.
The QC action limits must not exceed the QC suspension limits.

QC Plan. The project-specific plan developed by the Contractor describing, in detail, all aspects
of production and construction for the project to ensure consistent control of quality to meet
specification requirements.

QC Plan Administrator. An employee of, or consultant engaged by the Contractor, responsible
for developing and overseeing all aspects of QC for the project. This includes, but is not
limited to preparing the QC plan, managing the Contractor QC personnel, communicating
routinely with the production personnel to ensure quality, initiating corrective action and
suspending operations when the process is found to be producing non-conforming materials,
and preparing and submitting all necessary QC documentation to the Engineer within the
specified time period.

QC Suspension Limits. A range of values defined in Table 1 that, if exceeded on a single QC
test, requires that the Contractor suspend operations and determine, correct, and document
the deficiencies before resuming production. The QC suspension limit must not exceed
specification requirement thresholds.

Sample. A representative quantity of concrete taken during production which is used to
measure the quality characteristics for the concrete.

Sampling Rate. The number of times the fresh concrete is sampled, as described in subsection
d.2 of this special provision.

Small Incidental Quantity. A single day’s placement of less than 20 cubic yards of concrete
used for non-structural or non-pavement related applications, including, but not limited to:



12SP-604A-10

CFS:JFS 3 of 21 06-14-19

curb and gutter, sidewalks and sidewalk ramps (excluding driveways and driveway ramps),
installing sign or fence posts, guard rail or cable rail foundations (excluding end anchorage
foundations), or other contract items where the small quantity of concrete is not paid for
separately, as approved by the Engineer. Requirements for small incidental quantity
consideration are described in subsections ¢.5.G, d.2.B and d.3 of this special provision.
The corresponding weekly QA test results must meet specification limits defined in Table 3.

Specification Limits. The threshold values placed on a quality characteristic used to evaluate

the quality of the material.

Strength Sample Test Result. The average of the two companion 28-day compressive

strength test specimens taken from the same sample of concrete is considered a strength
sample test result.

1

Strength Test Specimen. A strength test specimen is an individual 6-inch by 12-inch strength

test cylinder or 4-inch by 8-inch strength test cylinder molded and cured according to
AASHTO T23/ASTM C 31 and tested according to AASHTO T22/ASTM C 39. All respective
QC or QA strength test specimens must be the same nominal size. Strength test specimen
cylinder size of 4-inch by 8-inch is permitted only if the nominal maximum coarse aggregate
particle size, as specified for the coarse aggregate in the concrete mixture, is 1-inch, or less.

Sublot. A portion of a production lot, represented by a complete set of QA tests, as described

in subsection d.2.A of this special provision. The Engineer and the Contractor may agree to
reduce the typical sublot size based on project staging or other project conditions.

Supplementary Cementitious Materials (SCM). A mineral admixture (slag cement, fly ash)

used to replace a portion of the Portland cement, either individually or as a blended cement,
in the concrete mixture. SCM requirements are described in subsection ¢.5 of this special
provision.

b. Materials. Mixture requirements must be in accordance with the contract.
c. Contractor Administered Quality Control (QC).

1. Contractor Quality Control Plan (QC plan). Prepare, implement, and maintain a QC
plan specific to the project for concrete that will provide quality oversight for production,
testing, and control of construction processes. The QC plan must be in conformance with
the contract and must identify all procedures used to control production and placement
including when to initiate corrective action necessary to maintain the quality and uniformity
of the work.

Develop concrete mix designs and JMFs, as specified, and conduct QC sampling, testing,
and inspection during all phases of the concrete work at the minimum frequency, or at an
increased frequency sufficient to ensure that the work conforms to specification
requirements,

Project-specific items required in the QC plan include (where applicable), but are not limited
to the following:

A. Organization chart.



CFS:JFS

B.

12SP-604A-10
4 of 21 06-14-19

QC Plan Administrator and contact information.

C. The name(s) and credentials of the QC staff.

D.

Methods for interaction between production and QC personnel to engage timely

corrective action, including suspension of work.

E.
F.

G.
H

J.

Coordination of activities.
Documentation, procedures, and submittals.

Project and plant specifics.

. Concrete production facilities inspections and certifications.

Current testing equipment calibration documentation including calibration factor.

Testing and initial field curing facilities for QC and QA strength test specimens

(AASHTO T23/ASTM C 31).

K.

L.

Stockpile management plan.

Corrective action plan.

M. Mixing time and transportation, including time from batching to completion of
delivery and batch placement rate (batches per hour), along with the manufacturer’s
documentation relative to the batching equipment’s capabilities in terms of maximum
mixing capacity and minimum mixing time (ASTM C 94).

N.

Placement and consolidation methods including monitoring of vibration, depth

checks, and verification of pavement dowel bar alignment.

O. Process for monitoring stability of air content of fresh concrete during concrete
production and placement.

P.

Hot and cold weather protection considerations and methods.

Q. Control charts with action and suspension limits.

R. Verification for non-deleterious alkali-silica reactivity (see subsection ¢.5.A of this
special provision).

S.

T.

U.

V.

Mix design and JMFs.
Proposed production lot size and location for use of each JMF on the project.
The frequency of sampling, testing, and yield verification.

Handling, protection, initial curing, and transporting of strength test specimens

(AASHTO T23/ASTM C31).



12S5P-604A-10
CFS:JFS 5 of 21 06-14-19

W. Methods to monitor construction equipment loading and open-to-traffic strengths.
X. Finishing and curing procedure.
Y. Ride quality control.

Z. List of QC records to be submitted to the Engineer in accordance with subsection
c.2 of this special provision.

Submit the QC plan, for the appropriate items of work, to the Engineer for review a minimum
of 10 working days before the start of related work. The Engineer will notify the Contractor
of any objections relative to the content of the QC plan within 5 working days of receipt of
the QC plan. Do not begin concrete placement before acceptance of the QC plan by the
Engineer. If the approved QC plan fails to provide acceptable work, or acceptable control of
the work, the Engineer may require the Contractor to revise the QC plan. Revisions to the
QC plan must be approved by the Engineer prior to resuming work.

2. QC Records. Maintain complete records of all QC tests and inspections. Document
what action was taken to correct deficiencies. Include sufficient information to allow the test
results to be correlated with the items of work represented.

Furnish one copy of all QC records, including test reports for the fresh concrete placement,
to the Engineer within 24 hours after the date covered by the record in a format acceptable
to the Engineer. The Engineer will withhold acceptance of the concrete for failure to provide
properly documented and timely QC records and reports.

If the Engineer is performing QA sampling and testing at the same time the Contractor is
performing QC sampling and testing, all associated QC records must include the appropriate
production lot identification number that correlates with the Department’'s QA production lot
identification number.

3. Personnel Requirements. The QC Plan Administrator must have full authority and
responsibility to take all actions necessary for the successful implementation of the QC plan,
including but not limited to, the following:

A. Monitoring and utilizing QC tests, control charts, and other QC practices to
ensure that delivered materials and proportioning meets specification requirements.

B. Monitoring materials shipped to the project, prior to their use, to ensure their
continued compatibility toward producing consistent quality.

C. Periodically inspecting all equipment utilized in transporting, proportioning,
mixing, placing, consolidating, finishing, and curing to ensure proper operation.

D. Monitoring materials stockpile management, concrete batching, mixing,
transporting, placement, consolidation, finishing, and curing to ensure conformance with
specification requirements.

E. Maintaining and submitting all QC records and reports.

F. Directing the necessary corrective action to ensure continual conformance within



12SP-604A-10
CFS:JFS 6 of 21 06-14-19

the QC action limits.
G. Suspending production for the project when suspension limits are exceeded.
H. Conducting or monitoring adjustments to the JMF.

Individuals performing QC tests must demonstrate that they are proficient and capable
of sampling and testing concrete or aggregate, where applicable, in accordance with the
associated test procedures and Department requirements prior to commencement of
related work. Any adjustments to the JMF must be made by a certified concrete
technician (Michigan Concrete Association (MCA) Michigan Level iI).

4. QC Laboratory Requirements. Laboratories, including field laboratories and all
associated testing equipment that prepare concrete mixes or perform QC testing, must
demonstrate to the Engineer that they are equipped, staffed, calibrated, and managed so as
to be capable of batching, and testing PCC in accordance with the applicable test methods
and procedures. Mix designs and their accompanying JMFs must include a statement,
signed by a certified concrete technician (MCA Michigan Level ll), that all applicable
standard test methods have been followed in verifying the mix design and JMF.

5. Mix Design and Documentation. Design concrete mixtures meeting the requirements
specified in Table 1. Provide the grade of concrete for the section number reference
application specified in Table 1, or as specified in the contract. Request variance in writing
when proposing a mix design that exhibits temperature, slump or air content other than those
specified. Include the proposed mix design, JMF, and associated trial batch verification test
data. Do not use a grade of concrete with a lower specification limit (LSL) 28-day
compressive strength greater than what is designated for the application.

' Blended cement meeting the requirements of ASTM C 595 Type IL is permitted.

Ensure supplementary cementitious materials are from an MDOT Approved Manufacturer.
Slag cement must meet the requirements of subsection 901.06 of the Standard
Specifications for Construction. Fly ash must meet the requirements of subsection 901.07
of the Standard Specifications for Construction.

Secure prior approval from the Engineer to use concrete intended for early opening to traffic
to facilitate driveway gaps or other features necessary for required local access.

Unless otherwise specified in the contract, set accelerating admixtures are prohibited.

Optimized aggregate gradation is required for high performance concrete and concrete
mixtures that are placed using a pump. Concrete mixtures for tremie and drilled shaft
applications do not require optimized aggregate gradation. The physical requirements for
coarse and intermediate aggregates specified in subsection 902.03.C of the Standard
Specifications for Construction apply to high performance concrete pavement mixtures. The
physical requirements for aggregates used in concrete mixtures for all other applications will
be according to the contract.

Unless otherwise specified in the contract, provide either concrete Grade P1 or Grade D for
bridge approach slab applications.



12SP-604A-10
CFS:JFS 7 of 21 06-14-19

Unless otherwise specified in the contract, do not exceed 40 percent replacement of the
Portland cement in the concrete mixture with a supplementary cementitious material. Do
not exceed 40 percent total repiacement of the Portland cement if more than one
supplementary cementitious material is used in the concrete mixture.

Use the combined weight of all cementitious materials to determine compliance with the
maximum water-cementitious ratio and cementitious material content requirements specified
in Table 1.

For night casting, where applicable, a water-reducing admixture may be used in lieu of a
water-reducing and retarding admixture, provided the concrete can be placed and finished
in the sequence specified on the plans prior to initial set, is not subjected to residual vibration,
or is not within the areas influenced by dead load deflections as a result of adjacent concrete
placement operations. When the maximum air temperature is not forecast to exceed 60
degrees F for the day, the Contractor may use a water-reducing admixture or a water-
reducing retarding admixture.



12SP-604A-10

CFS:JFS 8 of 21 06-14-19
Table 1: Minimum Mix Design Requirements for Concrete
Mix Design Parameter Grade of Concrete
P1M P1 D,DM T S1 S2,52M S3/P2
{a,b.e) {a,b) (abe) (a) {a,b,e) (a)
Lower Specification Limit (LSL)
(28-day compressive, psi) 3500 3500 4500 3500 4000 3500 3000
Rejection Limit for an Individual
Strength Sample Test Result 3000 3000 4000 3000 3500 3000 2500
Maximum Water/Cementitious Ratio 045
(Ib/lb) (c) )
(?s/f;’;;)t"('g;“ Material Content 470-564 | 517-611 | 517658 | 517611 | 517611 | 517611 | 489-517
Air Content (percent) (f) 5.5-8.5
Slump (inch) (max.) )
Section Number Reference (h) 602,603 | 602,603, | 706,711, | 706,718 | 705 401, 7086, | 402, 403,
801, 802, | 712 712,713, | 602, 803,
803, 810 718,801, | 804, 806,
802, 803, | 808, 810,
810, 819 813, 814

If the local average minimum temperature in the next 10 consecutive days is forecast to be below 40 degrees F, submit a revised QC plan for
the Engineer's approval, addressing in detail changes in materials, concrete batching and mixing processes, construction methods, curing,
and protection of the in situ concrete to ensure that the necessary quality characteristics of the hardened concrete product will not be
compromised as a result of the cold weather. The revised QC pilan must be approved by the Engineer prior to cold weather concrete placement.
Do not remove supplementary cementitious material from the concrete mixture.

Use aggregates from only geologically natural sources for pavement, shoulder, miscellaneous pavement (including ramps), concrete pavement
overlay, bridge approach slab, structural concrete, drilled shaft, bridge railing, and bridge sidewalk applications.

Use admixtures as listed in the Qualified Products Lists to reduce mixing water. Ensure concrete in concrete diaphragms contains a water-
reducing admixture, or a water-reducing retarding admixture.

Type Il cement is not permitted.

For grades of concrete requiring optimized gradation, aggregates must meet the physical requirements specified in subsection 902.03.C of the
Standard Specifications for Construction.

For action, suspension, and specification limits, see Tables 2 and 3, where applicable.

The maximum slump for Grades P1, P1M, and P2 concrete is 3 inches or as documented on the approved JMF, All other grades of concrete
will be according to Table 701-1 of the Standard Specifications for Construction.

Section Number Reference: 402 Storm Sewers
401 Pipe Culverts 602 Concrete Pavement Construction
403 Drainage Structures 705 Foundation Piling

603 Concrete Pavement Restoration 711 Bridge Railings
706 Structural Concrete Construction 713 Bridge Rehabilitation-Steel
712 Bridge Rehabilitation-Concrete 801 Concrete Driveways

718 Drilled Shafts

802 Concrete Curb, Gutter and Dividers
804 Concrete Barriers and Glare Screens
808 Fencing

813 Slope Protection

819 Electrical and Lighting

803 Concrete Sidewalk, Sidewalk Ramps, and Steps
806 Shared Use Paths

810 Permanent Traffic Signs and Supports

814 Paved Ditches




- 12SP-604A-10
CFS:JFS 9 of 21 06-14-19

A. Alkali-Silica Reactivity. Provide documentation to the Engineer that the concrete
mixture does not present the potential for deleterious expansion caused by alkali-silica
reactivity (ASR). Provide current ASR test results (valid for 2 years from completion of
testing), for the fine aggregate that is proposed to be used in the concrete, from an
independent testing laboratory proficient in ASR testing. The independent testing
laboratory must certify in writing, including a signed statement that all testing was
conducted in accordance with the designated standard test procedures, described
herein. Test results must conform to the specified criterion for one of the following
standard test methods. ASR testing is not required for concrete pavement repairs and
temporary concrete pavements. Use the Rounding Method described in ASTM E 29
when determining significant digits for reporting expansion test results.

(1) Method 1. ASTM C 1293. Concrete Prism Test. If the expansion of concrete
prisms is not greater than 0.040 percent (rounded to the nearest 0.001 percent)

after 1 year, the fine aggregate is considered non-deleterious to ASR and may
be used in the JMF.

(2) Method 2. ASTM C 1567. Mortar Bar Test. If no previous test data are
available for the fine aggregate that shows it is resistant to ASR using Method 1,
above, replace 25 to 40 percent of the Portland cement in the concrete mixture with
a supplementary cementitious material. A blended cement meeting the requirements
of ASTM C 595 containing the above Portland cement and supplementary
cementitious material proportions may also be used.

Demonstrate the ability of the supplementary cementitious material to control the
deleterious expansion caused by ASR by molding and testing mortar bars according
to the standard test method described in ASTM C 1567 using the mix proportions
and constituent sources for both the aggregates and the cementitious materials that
will be used for the project. Make at least three test specimens for each cementitious
materials-aggregate combination. If the average of three mortar bars for a given
cementitious materials-aggregate combination produces an expansion less than
0.10 percent (rounded to the nearest 0.01 percent) at 14 days of immersion, the JMF
associated with that combination will be considered non-deleterious to ASR. If the
average expansion is 0.10 percent (rounded to the nearest 0.01 percent) or greater,
the JMF associated with that combination will be considered not sufficient to control
the deleterious expansion caused by ASR and the JMF will be rejected.

(3) Method 3. ASTM C 71260. Mortar Bar Test. If the expansion of the mortar
bars is less than 0.10 percent (rounded to the nearest 0.01 percent) at 14 days of
immersion, the fine aggregate is considered non-deleterious to ASR and may be
used in the concrete without the need for ASR mitigation.

The Engineer will not approve the use of the JMF if the expansion exceeds the
respective threshold limits for the respective ASTM test method used.

B. Contractor Provided Mixes. Provide mix design and accompanying JMFs using
the methods of verification included in this special provision. Include sufficient
information on constituent materials and admixtures along with trial batch verified
physical properties of the fresh concrete, mix proportions per cubic yard for all
constituents and compressive strength test results necessary to allow the Engineer to



CFS:JFS

125P-604A-10
10 of 21 06-14-19

fully evaluate the expected performance of the concrete mixture.

(1) Mix Documentation. Prepare mix designs for each grade of concrete required
on the project. Submit JMF for each mix design, including all required
documentation, to the Engineer for review 10 working days before the anticipated
date of placement. The Engineer will notify the Contractor of any objections within 5
working days of receipt of the mix documentation. Number or otherwise identify each
JMF and reference all accompanying documentation to this identification. Reference
each JMF to the appropriate method of verification. Mix design and JMF submittals
that do not inciude all required documentation will be considered incomplete and the
Engineer will return them without review.

Mix documentation is valid for 2 years provided the material characteristics have not
deviated beyond the requirements specified in the contract.

All mix designs and accompanying JMFs must be traceable to a laboratory meeting
the requirements of this special provision.

Submit mix design and JMF on the MDOT Job Mix Formula (JMF) Concrete Field
Communication form (MDOT Form Number 1976); include accompanying
documentation. List the source of materials, bulk density (unit weight) of coarse
aggregate (rodding procedure or shoveling procedure), absorption of aggregates,
relative density (specific gravity) of aggregates, aggregate correction factors, batch
weights, and project specific or historical laboratory test data. Include the recorded
air content of fresh concrete using the same admixture and cementitious material
sources to be used in the production of the concrete for the project. A JMF will be
approved only if all of the minimum mix design requirements specified in the contract
have been met.

(2) Job Mix Formula (JMF). Select proportions for concrete mixtures according
to AC/ Standard 211.1. The volume (oven-dry-rodded) of coarse aggregate per unit
volume of concrete must be 65 percent, minimum.

Four methods of verification of proposed JMF are acceptable.

(a) Method 1. Trial Batches. Verification of JMF is based on trial batches
with the same materials and proportions proposed for use on the project. Prepare
at least one trial batch for each mix design in sufficient time before starting
concrete placement to ailow for review according to subsection ¢.5.B.(1) of this
special provision. Provide the resuits of temperature, slump, density (unit
weight), air content of fresh concrete, 28-day compressive strength, and age of
concrete at the time of strength testing, for a minimum of three independent
samples. All samples may be taken from a single trial batch for a mix design
provided the trial batch is at least four cubic yards in volume. For JMF trial batch
verification purposes only, 7-day compressive strength test results which report
at least 70 percent of the specified 28-day lower specification limit (LSL) will be
sufficient documentation in lieu of 28-day compressive strengths. The average
of at least two strength test specimens represents one compressive strength
sample test result for each independent sample. Provide ‘'the necessary ASR
documentation as described in subsection ¢.5.A of this special provision.



125P-604A-10
CFS:JFS 11 of 21 06-14-19

(b) Method 2. Same Mix. Verification of JMF is based on the concrete
producer’s experience with the same mix design, JMF, and the same materials.
Provide the results of temperature, slump, density (unit weight), air content of
fresh concrete, 28-day compressive strength, and age of concrete at the time of
strength testing, for a minimum of three independent samples. The average of
at least two strength test specimens represents one compressive strength
sample test result for each independent sample. Do not substitute material types
or sources, including admixtures or cementitious materials, nor change mix
proportions in the JMF. Provide the necessary ASR documentation as described
in subsection ¢.5.A of this special provision.,

(c) Method 3. Similar Mix. Verification of JMF is based on requirements
described in Method 2, in subsection ¢.5.B.(2).(b) of this special provision.
Substitution of coarse aggregate source is permitted if the new source is of the
same geologic type as the original aggregate, and conforms to the specification
requirements for the application. Substitution of fine aggregate is permitted only
if the new source has been tested for ASR. Provide the necessary ASR
documentation as described in subsection ¢.5.A of this special provision.

Provide the supporting laboratory trial batch documentation and accompanying
calculations showing how the mix proportions in the JMF were adjusted, based
on the documented differences in relative density (specific gravity), bulk density
(unit weight) and absorption of the substituted aggregate sources, to produce a
theoretical yield of 100 percent and the required fresh concrete properties.

(d) Method 4. Annual Verification. At the Engineer's option, verification may
be accepted annually for a concrete producer rather than on a project basis
provided the sources and proportions of the constituent materials, including
cementitious materials and source and types admixtures, do not change. If the
project is the continuation of work in progress during the previous construction
season and written certification is submitted to the Engineer that materials from
the same source and with the same mixture properties are to be used, the
Engineer may waive the requirement for annual renewal verification of the JMF
for the project. Provide the necessary ASR documentation as described in
subsection ¢.5.A of this special provision.

C. Department Provided Mixes. Unless otherwise specified in the contract or
approved by the Engineer, the Engineer will provide the concrete JMF for the following
types of concrete regardless of the total quantity for the project.

(1) Structural concrete patching mixtures, mortar and grout.
(2) Bridge debk overlay concrete mixtures.

(3) Project-specific concrete mixtures and grades not defined in Table 1.

Provide all other mix designs and accompanying JMF’s according to subsection ¢.5.B
of this special provision.

The ASR documentation for the fine aggregate described in subsection ¢.5.A of this
special provision must accompany the Contractor's request for the concrete JMF.



12SP-604A-10
CFS:JFS 12 of 21 06-14-19

D. Changes in Materials and Proportions. Any changing from one approved JMF to
another for the same grade of concrete must have prior approval by the Engineer.

Prior to batching, verify that the proposed JMF changes will not affect the properties of
the fresh concrete (slump, temperature, air content, density (unit weight), workability),
nor result in deleterious mortar bar expansion as a result of ASR, as described in
subsection ¢.5.A of this special provision.

Record all changes to JMF in the QC records along with the rationale for the change.

E. QC Sampling and Testing. Conduct startup sampling and testing for
temperature, slump, density (unit weight), and air content on the first load. Do not place
concrete until testing verifies that the fresh concrete properties have not exceeded the
QC action and suspension limit thresholds specified in Table 2 and the testing correlation
requirements of subsection d.1.B of this special provision have been met. Continue
testing subsequent loads as described in the QC plan, for each grade of concrete
delivered to the work site each day. The QC sampling and testing must be random and
independent from the Agencies QA sampling and testing.

Provide the curing facilities in accordance with subsection d.2.C of this special provision
prior to start of concrete production.

Perform QC sampling and testing for air content of fresh concrete that is either slipformed
or pumped, as described in the QC plan. Sample and test a representative haul unit of
concrete immediately after its discharge but before the slipform paver or pump hopper,
where applicable. Sample and test the concrete representing the same haul unit, again,
after the slipform paver or after discharge from the pump (without interruption or
alteration of the pumping operation), where applicable. If the difference in measured air
content between the two test locations for the same concrete is greater than 1.5 percent
air by volume of concrete, suspend operations and administer corrective action. Resume
concrete placement only after taking the necessary corrective action to reduce the loss
in air content of fresh concrete between the two test locations, as approved by the
Engineer. Document the corrective action to be taken in the QC records and make the
necessary changes to the QC plan, where applicable.

Concrete exceeding the maximum specification limits for slump or temperature must be
rejected regardless of the total mixing time at the time of arrival to the project.

The Engineer may require the Contractor to administer additional QC sampling and
testing if the Engineer determines the Contractor's current QC sampling and testing
methodology is shown to be insufficient to ensure continual control of the quality of the
concrete,

Take the appropriate corrective action, as described in the QC plan, when QC testing
shows the QC action limits for any quality characteristic are exceeded. Suspend
production if any of the QC suspension limits are exceeded or if the corrective action is
not sufficient to restore the quality to acceptable levels.

Resume production only after making all necessary adjustments to bring the mixture into
conformance with all applicable specifications and receiving approval to resume work



12SP-604A-10
CFS:JFS 13 of 21 06-14-19

from the Engineer. Document these adjustments in the QC records.
Table 2: QC Action and Suspension Limits

Quality Characteristic Action Limits Suspension Limits
Air Content (percent) See Note Below <50 or >9.0
Air Content Loss (percent) Greater than 1.5
Conc. Temp. (Deg. F) As Defined in the <45 or > 90 at time of placement
Slump {max.) {inch) Contractor QC plan See Table 1, footnote (g)
Density (unit weight) N/A
Note: Action limits must be defined in the Contractor QC plan and cannot be < 5.5 or > 8.5.
Suspend work if air content is < 5.0 or > 9.0 percent after pump or paver, regardless of the air
content loss.

F. Work Progress Test Specimens. Determine the strength of concrete for opening
to construction traffic or regular traffic, for removing shoring and forms, or for similar
purposes in accordance with subsections 104.11, 601.03.H and 701.03.D of the Standard
Specifications for Construction, and as approved by the Engineer. Cure work progress
test specimens in the same manner as the in-situ concrete. Allow the Engineer to witness
testing of work progress test specimens.

The maturity method may be used to determine the in-place, opening-to-traffic flexural
strength, provided the necessary preliminary flexural strength versus time-temperature
factor correlation, using the same materials and JMF, is established according to
Department procedures and approved by the Engineer before placing the concrete.

G. Reduced QC for Small Incidental Quantities. if approved by the Engineer, reduced
levels of on-site QC testing for concrete may be considered for small incidental quantities
defined in subsection a.1 of this special provision.

Unless approved by the Engineer, multiple small incidental quantities, including ones that
are consecutively placed throughout the project on the same day, are not eligible for
reduced QC consideration if the total plan quantity of concrete for the item exceeds 100
cubic yards in volume. Include details for reduced QC testing and oversight in the
approved QC plan, and in accordance with following:

(1) The small incidental quantity of concrete will be limited to a single day’s
concrete placement of a maximum 20 cubic yards in volume,

(2) The small incidental quantity of concrete is not an integral part of a structural
load bearing element.

(3) The Engineer received written certification from the Contractor that the
concrete supplier has a current QC plan in place and available for review upon request
by the Engineer.

(4) The concrete supplier employs a certified concrete technician (MCA Michigan
Level 1) available at the plant or on call during concrete placement to validate and
authorize modifications to the concrete JMF, as necessary.

(5) Prior to the first concreting operation, concrete representing the JMF for the
small incidental quantity has been sampled and tested by a certified concrete
technician (MCA Michigan Level | or II) to verify that, historically, the JMF produced a



12SP-604A-10
CFS:JFS 14 of 21 06-14-19

concrete mixture meeting the minimum requirements for density (unit weight), slump,
air content, and strength. Annual verification may be acceptable provided there are
no changes to the material types or sources, including the cementitious materials and
admixtures.

(6) The Engineer verified that the temperature, slump, and air content conform to
specification requirements at the start of the day's concreting operation associated
with the small incidental quantity.

(7) The Engineer is notified and provided sufficient opportunity to witness concrete
placement.

d. Department Administered Quality Assurance (Acceptance).

1. Department Quality Assurance Plan (QA plan). The Engineer will be responsible for
administering the quality-based acceptance and will institute any actions necessary toward its
successful implementation.

Acceptance of concrete pavement repair mixtures and concrete mixtures not included in Table
1 will be in accordance with the contract. '

The Engineer will develop and follow a QA plan. The Engineer will provide the QA plan to the
QC Plan Administrator a minimum of 5 working days prior to the pre-production meeting. The
QA plan will be reviewed at the pre-production meeting and any proposed changes will be
documented.

The nominal QA strength test specimen size, defined in subsection a.1 of this special provision
will be noted in the QA plan.

A. Personnel Requirements. The personnel responsible for field inspection and for
obtaining QA samples will possess the required qualifications to collect QA samples.
Sampling will be performed by a certified concrete technician (MCA Michigan Level | or 1)
or (MCAT) certified aggregate technician, where applicable.

B. Testing Correlation. Prior to initial concrete placement, the testing personnel for
both the Engineer's QA and Contractor's QC will use the equipment they have assigned
to the project to conduct side by side correlation testing of the same concrete used on the
project to verify correlation of both the Department’s and the Contractor’s test results for
temperature and air content of fresh concrete. Additional side by side correlation testing
will be conducted whenever there is a change in QC or QA equipment and/or testing
personnel for the project, or as directed by the Engineer. The temperature measuring
devices used for QC and QA must correlate with each other within 2 degrees F. If the air
content results of the side by side tests conducted by the QC and QA testers and
equipment differ by more than 0.8 percent air by volume of concrete, a referee air content
test of fresh concrete must be conducted by a third party, designated by the Engineer but
independent of the project, prior to commencement or continuation of concrete placement
in efforts to resolve issues associated with non-correlation.

C. Laboratory Facilities. The testing laboratory with responsibility for acceptance
testing on this project is the Department testing laboratory, or a qualified facility under the
authority of the Engineer.



125P-604A-10
CFS:JFS 15 of 21 06-14-19

2. QA Sampling and Testing. The Engineer will verify the Contractor’s daily startup
sampling and testing of temperature, slump, and air content of fresh concrete on the first load;
conduct QA sampling and testing; monitor Contractor adherence to the QC plan; and inspect
field placed materials in such a manner as to ensure that all concrete for the project is
represented. The testing correlation requirements of subsection d.1.B of this special provision
must be met prior to concrete placement.

The following ASTM test methods will apply. The Department’s established procedures for
sampling and testing are acceptable alternatives.

C 31 Practice for Making and Curing Concrete Test Specimens in the Field
C 39 Test Method for Compressive Strength of Cylindrical Concrete Specimens

C 78 Test Method for Flexural Strength of Concrete (Using Simple Beam with Third-Point
Loading)

C 138 Test Method for Density (Unit Weight), Yield and Air Content (Gravimetric) of Concrete
C 143 Test Method for Slump of Hydraulic-Cement Concrete

C 172 Practice for Sampling Freshly Mixed Concrete

C 173 Test Method for Air Content of Freshly Mixed Concrete by the Volumetric Method
C-231 Test Method for Air Content of Freshly Mixed Concrete by the Pressure Method

C 293 Test Method for Flexural Strength of Concrete (Using Simple Beam with Center-Point
Loading)

A. Lot Size and Make Up. A production lot will not include more than one grade of
concrete, concrete of the same grade having different specified slump or air content, or
concrete of the same grade having different mix designs, or JMFs. Lot size and makeup
wili be determined by the Engineer, based on site conditions. A production lot may consist
of a single day’s production, individual concrete structural elements (eg. footing, column,
pier cap, deck, bridge approach slab), or any combination thereof, provided they are of
the same JMF. Each production lot will be divided into sublots of approximately equal
size, as determined by the Engineer. The minimum number of sublots will be one per
production lot, with the maximum number of sublots based on the anticipated total quantity
of concrete to be placed and site conditions. A minimum of one sublot will be required for
each day of production.

B. Sampiing. QA sampling and testing will be conducted by the Engineer during
concrete placement. Where practical, the random number method (as described in the
"Random Sampling for Quality Control/Quality Assurance Projects” section of the
Materials Quality Assurance Procedures Manual) will be used to determine the sampling
focations. The sampling rate will be determined by the Engineer, based on the anticipated
total quantity of concrete to be placed and site conditions, with a minimum of one sampling
for each day of production.



12SP-604A-10
CFS:JFS 16 of 21 06-14-19

At the option of the Engineer, small incidental quantities as defined in subsection a.1 of
this special provision may be accepted (visually inspected and noted on the inspector’s
Daily Report) without daily 28-day compressive strength QA test specimens provided
there is a current acceptable strength test history of the JMF for the project prior to
placement of the small incidental quantity. One set of compressive strength QA test
specimens will then be molded for each small incidentai quantity JMF at least once per
week during production, thereafter, as determined by the Engineer (note the test results
or identification number for the corresponding weekly QA compressive strength test result
on the Inspector’s Daily Report for each small incidental quantity). Quality control testing
and daily QA testing for temperature, slump, and air content of fresh concrete are still
required. Reduced QC for small incidental quantities, as described in subsection ¢.5.G of
this special provision, may be considered.

The QA sampling rate and sample location will be based on cubic yard quantities.

Samples for acceptance will be taken at the point of discharge from the haul unit, at
approximately the middle one-third of the load. Mix adjustments to the concrete contained
within the haul unit selected for QA sampling and testing (beyond normal QC) will not be
permitted prior to QA sampling and testing. QA sampling will be random and without prior
notification.

The Engineer will perform QA sampling and testing for air content loss of fresh concrete
that is either slipformed or pumped, (1) at least once during each day of production, (2)
whenever the concrete pump is relocated, where applicable, or (3) whenever there is a
significant change in the boom configuration or operation of the concrete pump, or there
is a significant change in the characteristics of the paving operation during concrete
placement. Concrete will be sampled from a representative haul unit immediately after its
discharge but before the slipform paver or pump hopper, where applicable. The concrete
representing the same haul unit will then be sampled and tested after the slipform paver
or after discharge from the pump (without interruption or alteration of the pumping
operation), where applicable. If the difference in measured air content between the two
test locations for the same concrete is greater than 1.5 percent air by volume of concrete,
the Engineer will issue a Notice of Non-Compliance with Contract Requirements (Form
1165), as described in subsection d.2.D of this special provision. The Contractor may
resume concrete placement only after the necessary corrective action is taken to reduce
the loss in air content of fresh concrete between the two test locations, as approved by
the Engineer. Document the corrective action that was taken by the Contractor.

C. Testing. The location(s) within the project limits for QA testing of the fresh concrete
and placement of curing facilities for initial curing of the 28-day compressive strength QA
test cylinders will be determined by the Engineer in conformance with the following criteria:

(1) The elapsed time between obtaining the first and the final portion of the
composite sample must not exceed 15 minutes.

(2) Testing for slump, temperature, and air content of fresh concrete must begin
within 5 minutes after obtaining the final portion of the composite sample.

(3) Molding of the 28-day compressive strength QA test cylinders must begin
within 15 minutes after obtaining the final portion of the composite sample.



12SP-604A-10
CFS:JFS 17 of 21 06-14-19

(4) The concrete sample must be protected from the sun, wind, and other sources
of rapid evaporation, and from contamination.

Two QA concrete strength test specimens per sample will be molded for 28-day
compressive strength QA testing.

The Contractor will provide curing facilities equipped to ensure the proper environment for
the Agencies QA concrete strength test specimens during initial cure. Each initial cure
facility must provide ventilation or insulation, where applicable, to ensure the ambient
temperature surrounding the specimens is maintained according to AASHTO T23/ASTM
C 31. Failure by the Contractor to maintain the proper curing environment during initial
cure will not be basis for rejection of samples or claims against the Department. Each
initial curing facility must be capable of being locked, using an Department provided
padlock. The Contractor will ensure that all initial curing facilities are accounted for at all
time, and protected against theft and damage. The Contractor will place and secure each
initial cure facility throughout the project limits in such a manner so as to minimize
excessive transport of the test specimens prior to initial cure, as follows:

(5) Immediately after finishing molded specimens, the Engineer will move the QA
concrete strength test specimens to the closest initial cure facility provided by the
Contractor.

(6) Immediately after all QA concrete strength test specimens are placed into the
cure facility and the proper initial curing conditions have been established, the
Engineer will secure the facility using the Department provided padlock. Access to the
QA concrete strength test specimens, thereafter, must be coordinated with the
Engineer and will only be permitted in the presence of the Engineer.

(7) The Engineer will transport the QA concrete strength test specimens within 48
hours after molding, but not prior to 8 hours after final set of the concrete, from the
initial curing facility to the Department’s designated testing laboratory for final curing
and strength testing. The specimens will be protected with a suitable cushioning
material to prevent damage from jarring during transport. The total transportation time
must not exceed 4 hours prior to commencement of final curing.

D. QA Stop Production Criteria. The Engineer will issue a Notice of Non-Compliance
with Contract Requirements (Form 1165) and concrete production must stop when one or
more of the following are observed.

(1) The QA testing shows that one or more of the suspension limits for quality
characteristics defined in Table 2 are in non-compliance.

(2) The QC plan is not being followed.

(3) Segregation, excessive slumping of unsupported slipformed edges, or other
notable changes in the fresh concrete properties is observed that may prevent proper
placement, consolidation and finishing, or compromise the performance or long-term
durability of the finished product.

(4) The required curing system is not being applied in a timely manner, as
specified by the contract.



125P-604A-10
CFS:JFS 18 of 21 06-14-19

(5) If the measured air content loss between the two testing locations for the same
concrete is greater than 1.5 percent air by volume of concrete as described in
subsections ¢.5.E and d.2.B of this special provision.

(8) If the air content of fresh concrete is less than 5.0 or greater than 9.0 percent
after pump or paver, regardless of the recorded QC or QA air content loss through the
pump or paver.

The Engineer will issue a Notice to Resume Work (Form 1165) only after all necessary
adjustments are made to restore conformance with all applicable specifications, and the
appropriate documentation is made in the QC records.

E. QA Records. The Engineer will maintain a complete record of all QA tests and
inspections. The records will contain, as a minimum, signed originals of aill QA test results
and raw data, random numbers used (where applicable) and resulting caiculations. The
QA test results will not be provided to the Contractor until the corresponding QC test
results are received by the Engineer.

3. Quality Index Analysis. The Engineer's QA test results will be used to determine the
pay factor (PF) and price adjustment (ADJ). The Contractor's QC test results will not be used
for pay factor and price adjustment analysis. The Engineer will complete pay factor and price
adjustment analysis within 7 working days after completion of all 28-day compressive strength
testing for the representative production fot or quantity of concrete. The quality index
parameter specification limits are defined in Table 3. Unless otherwise specified in the
contract, concrete not conforming to the requirements specified in Table 3 is rejectable and
subject to further evaluation. All values of PF and OLPF in these formulae are decimal, not
percent. All values of PF and OLPF are rounded to two decimal places.

Price adjustment for 28-day compressive strength deficiencies will be based on test results
for the corresponding weekly QA test specimens and the pay factor (PFs) calculated
according to the formula defined in subsection d.3.A. The price adjustment (ADJ) = (PFs —
1){Price).

Table 3: Quality Index Parameter Specification Limits

Quality Characteristic Specification Limits

Air Content of Fresh Concrete (percent) 55-8.5

Rejection Limit (percent) <5.0 or >9.0
Conc. Temp. (deg. F) 45 - 90 at time of placement
Slump (max.) (inch) See Table 1, footnote (g)
28-day Compressive Strength (psi) For LSL see Table 1

Rejection Limit -

28Jday Compressive Strength See Table 1

A. Pay Factor for 28-Day Compressive Strength (PFs).

Tested Strength

PFs =
LSL

Where:



12SP-604A-10

CFS:JFS 19 of 21 06-14-19

PFs = Pay Factor for 28-day compreséive strength (not to exceed 1.00)
Tested Strength = QA 28-day compressive strength sample test result
LSL = Lower specification limit (see Table 1)

If the tested strength does not meet the rejection limit specified in Table 1, the Engineer
will require additional evaluation as described in subsection d.4 of this special provision.

B. Pay Factor for Air Content of Fresh Concrete (PFac). The pay factor for air content
of fresh concrete (PFac) will be according to Table 4.

Table 4: Air Content of Fresh Concrete Pay Factor (PFac)

Air Content of Fresh
Concrete (percent) Pay Factor (PFac)
55-8.5 1.00
50-54 0.50
Below 5.0 Rejection
86-9.0 0.75
Above 9.0 Rejection

If theair content of fresh concrete is below 5.0 or above 9.0 percent, the Engineer will
elect to do one of the following.

(1) Require removali and replacement of the entire quantity of concrete
represented by the test with new testing conducted on the replacement concrete and
repeat the evaluation procedure.

(2) Allow submittal of a corrective action plan for the Engineer's app